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Independent Auditors’ Report

To,

The Members of

ZUNO General Insurance Limited

(Formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of ZUNO General Insurance Limited (Formerly known
as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited) (the “Company”) which comprise the Balance
sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Revenue Accounts of Fire, Marine and Miscellaneous Insurance
Business (collectively known as the ‘Revenue account’), the Profit and Loss account and the
Receipts and Payments Account for the year then ended, the schedules annexed there to, a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes thereon (hereinafter
referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of Accounting
Standards as specified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act), the Act,
Insurance Act, 1938 read with Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2021 (to the extent notified) (the
“Insurance Act”), the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the “IRDA Act’),
Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of india (Actuarial, Finance and Investment
Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (the “IRDA Financial Statements Regulations”) and
orders / directions , circulars issued by the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India (IRDAI’/ “the Authority”) and the Companies Act, 2013, as amended (the “Act’), to the extent
applicable, give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted
in India, as applicable to insurance companies:

a. in the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025:
b. in the case of Revenue Account, of the operating profit in Fire Insurance and Miscellaneous
Insurance Revenue Account and Operating loss in Marine Insurance Revenue Account for the
year ended on that date;

in the case of Profit and Loss Account, of the loss for the year ended on that date: and

ended on that date.
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Basis For Opinion

We concucted ou- audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit
of the financial statements under the Insurance Act, the IRDA Act, the Regulations, the Act and
the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and aporopriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial
statements and auditor's report thereon. The Company’s Annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express

any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required
to determine whether there is a material misstatement of the other information. if, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. When we read the Company's Annual report, if we
conclude that there ‘s a material misstatement therein, we are required to communicate the matter
to those charged wich governance.

Responsibilities of the Management and those charged with governance for the financial statements
The Management and Board of Directors are responsibie for the matters stated in Section 1 34(5) of the
Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial pasition, net surplus / deficit, financial performance and receipts and payments of the Company
in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the provisions of the
Insurance Act, the IRDA Act, the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, orders / directions / circulars

issued by IRDAI in this regard and Accounting Standards specified under Section 13 to the
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This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with
the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making udgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation ard maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free

from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for
assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of
Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

The Management and Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s
financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We aiso:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible
for expressing oLr opinion on whether the Company has adequate intemal financial controls with

reference to finanial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such co i
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* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management and Board of
Directors.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management and Board of Directors use of the going
concern basis of accounting in preparation of financial statements and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

* Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and otner matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters

The actuarial valuat on of liabilities in respect of Incurred but Not Reported (“IBNR”) , Incurred but
Not Enough Reported (“IBNER”) and Premium Deficiency Reserve (“PDR”) is the responsibility of
the Company’s Apoointed Actuary (the “Appointed Actuary”). The actuarial valuation these
liabilities, that are estimated using statistical methods as at March 31, 2025 has been duly certified
by the Appointed Actuary and in her opinion, the assumptions for such valuation are in accordance
with the guidelines and norms issued by IRDA! and the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence
with the Authority. We have relied upon the Appointed Actuary’s certificate in this regard for forming
our opinion on the valuation of liabilities for outstanding claims reserves and PDR contained in the
financial statements of the Company.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. Cop
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, we have issued a separate certificate

dated April 22, 2025 certifying the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part Il of

Schedule Il to the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations.

2A. As required by Para 2 of Part Ill of Schedule Il to the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations

read with Section 143(3) of the Act, in our opinion and according to the information and

explanations give to us, we report that:

a.

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

As the Company’s financial accounting system is centralized and maintained at the
corporate office, no returns for the purpose of our audit are prepared at the branches and
other offices of the Company as required under section 143(8) of the Companies Act 2013.
Proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Balance Sheet, the Revenue Accounts, the Profit and Loss account and the Receipts
and Payment account dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account.
The aforesaid financial statements comply with the applicable Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act, to the extent they are not inconsistent with the
accounting principles prescribed in the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations and orders/
directions/ circulars issued by IRDAI in this regard.

the Balance Sheet, the Revenue Accounts, the Profit and Loss Account and the Receipts
and Payments Account referred to in this report are prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Insurance Act, the IRDA Act and the Act to the extent applicable and
the manner so required.

Investments have been valued in accordance with the provisions of the Insurance Act, the
IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, the IRDA Act and/or orders/directions issued by
the IRDAI in this regard.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31,
2025 taken cn record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2C25 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.
The actuarial valuation of liabilities in respect of Incurred But Not Reported (‘IBNR’),
Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER') and Premium Deficiency Reserve (the “PDR”)
as at March 31, 2025 has been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary of the Company
and relied upon by us. The Appointed Actuary has also certified that the assumptions
considered ky her for such valuation are in accordance with the guidelines and norms
prescribed by the IRDAI and the Actuarial Society of India in concurrence with the IRDAI.
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J-

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure A”.

B. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule

11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our

information and according to the explanations given to us:

a.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at March 31, 2025 on its

financial position in its financial statements - Refer Note No. 5.1.1 and Note No. 5.2.17 of

Schedule 16 to the financial statements.

The Company has made provision, as required under the applicable iaw or accounting

standards, for material foreseeable losses, if any, on long-term contracts. The Company

did not have any outstanding long-term derivative contracts - Refer Note No. 5.2.18 of

Schedule 16 to the financial statements.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education

and Protection Fund by the Company - Refer Note No. 5.2.19 of Schedule 16 to the

financial statements.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

in the Note No. 5.2.21 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, no funds have been

advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other

sources or Kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in

writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall:

* directly o~ indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed

in the Note No. 6.2.21 of Schedule 16 to the financial statements, no funds have been

received by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities

(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that

the Company shall:

* directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parties (*Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or

* provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Based on the audit procedures performed that have been considered reasonable and

appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to

believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as provided

under (d) anc {e) above, contain any material misstatement.
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g. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year and as such the

compliance of section 123 of the Act has not been commented upon.

h. According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination

which included appropriate test checks, we report that the Company has used accounting

software for maintaining its books of account which has the feature of recording audit trail

(edit log) fac lity and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions

recorded in the software. Further, we did not come across any instance of tampering of the

audit trail feature during the course of our audit.

C. With respect to “he matter to be included in the Auditor's Report under Section 197(16) of the
Act, ir our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the

remuneration pzid by the Company to its directors during the current year is in accordance with
the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read with Section 34A of the Insurance Act, 1938. The
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of
the Act read with Section 34A of the Insurance Act, 1938. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has
not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be

commented upon by us.

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 119850W/W100013

R.P. Soni

Partner

Membership No. 104796
UDIN: 25104796BMHGUF8794

Place: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2025
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Partner

Membership No. 033632
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Place: Mumbai
Date: April 23, 2025
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditor’'s Report on the financial statements of ZUNO
General Insurance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company
Limited) for the year ended March 31, 2025

(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(j) under '‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements'

section of our report of even date)

Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“The Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of ZUNO
General Insurance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)
("the Company”} as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of
the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management's Responsibilities for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”).

Auditor’'s Responsibhility

Our respensibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.
Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
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Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of interna! financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the

financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to financial

statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation
of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include
those policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2) provide reasorable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisitior, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the

financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
mpliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Opinion

in our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on “the internal control
with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants of india”.

Other Matters

The actuarial valuaion of liabilities in respect of Incurred But Not Reported (the “IBNR”), Incurred
But Not Enough Reported (the “IBNER") and Premium Deficiency Reserve (the “PDR”) is the
responsibility of the Company’s Appointed Actuary (the “Appointed Actuary”). The actuarial
valuation of these liabilities, that are estimated using statistical methods as at March 31, 2025 has
been duly certified by the Appointed Actuary and in her opinion, the assumptions considered by
him for such valuat on are in accordance with the guidelines and norms issued by the IRDA| and
the Institute of ActLaries of India in concurrence with the IRDAI. The said actuarial valuations of
liabilities for outstanding claims reserves and the PDR have been relied upon by us as mentioned
in “Other Matter” paragraph in our Audit Report on the financial statements of the Company for the
year ended March 31, 2025.

Accordingly, our opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
does not include reporting on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal controls
over the valuation and accuracy of the aforesaid actuarial liabilities.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

For NGS & Co. LLP For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration N2. 119850W/wW100013 Firm Registration No. 105049W
R.P. Soni S. 8. Shah

Partner Partner

Membership No. 104796 Membership No. 033632

UDIN: 25104796BMHGUF8794 UDIN: 25033632BMMJTZ6776
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025
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Independent Auditors’ Certificate

To,

The Members of

ZUNO General Insurance Limited

(Formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

(Referred to in paragraph 1 of our Independent Auditors’ Report on Other Legal and Regulatory

Requirements forming part of the Independent Auditors’ Report dated April 22, 2025)

1. This certificate s issued to ZUNO General Insurance Limited (Formerly known as Edelweiss
General Insurznce Company Limited) (the “Company”} comply with the provisions of
paragraph 3 and 4 of Part lll of Schedule Il to the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations

Management’s Responsibility
2. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for complying with the provisions of the

Insurance Act, 1938 read with Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2021 (to the extent notified)

(the “Insurance Act"), the insurance Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999 (the

“IRDA Act"), Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India(Actuarial, Finance and

Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (the “IRDA Financial Statements

Regulations”), and the orders / circulars / directions issued by the Insurance Regulatory and

Development Authority of India (the “IRDAI"), which includes

(i) preparation of management report consistent with the financial statements;

(ii) compliance with the terms and conditions of the registration stipulated by the Authority; (iii)
maintenance and custody of cash balances and maintenance of investments with custody
and depository; and

(iv)ensuring that no part of the assets of the policyholders’ funds has been directly or indirectly
applied in contravention of the provisions of the Insurance Act, relating to the application and
investments of the Policyholders’ Funds. This responsibility includes collecting, collating and
vaiidating dzta and designing, implementing and monitoring of internal controls suitable for
ensuring the aforesaid and applying an appropriate basis of preparation; and making
esiimates ard judgments that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Independent Auditor's Responsibility

3. Pursuant to the requirement of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulations, our responsibility
for the purpose of this certificate, is to provide reasonable assurance and form an opinion,
based on our audit and examination of books of account and other relevant records, as to
whether the Company has complied with the matters contained in paragraphs 3 and 4 of Part

Il of Schedule Il of the IRDA Financial Statements Regulation read with Regulation 3 of the

IRDA =inancial Statements Regulations.
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4. We audited financial statements of the Company as of and financial year ended March 31,

2025 on which we issued an unmodified audit opinion vide our report dated April 22, 2025.
Our audit of these financial statements were conducted in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing and cther applicable authoritative pronouncements issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (‘'ICAI'). Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstazement. Our audit was not planned and performed in connection with any
transactions to identify matters that may be of potential interest to third parties.

We conducted our examination in accordance with the Guidance Note on Reports or
Certificates for Special Purposes (Revised 2016) and Standards on Auditing issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) in so far as applicable for the purpose of this
Certificate, which include the concepts of test checks and materiality.

This Guidance Note requires that we comply with the ethical requirements of the Code of
Ethics issued by the ICAI. We have complied with the relevant applicable requirements of the
Standard on Quality Control (SQC) 1, “Quality Control for Firms that Perform Audits and
Reviews of Historical Financial Information, and Other Assurance and Related Services
Engagements”.

Opinion
7.

In accordance with the information and explanations and representations given to us and to the

best of our knowledge and belief and based on our examination, of the books of account and

other records maintained by the Company for the year ended March 31, 2025, we certify that:

a) We have reviewed the Management Report attached to the financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2025, and on the basis of our review, there is no apparent mistake
or material inconsistencies with the financial statements;

b} Based on in‘ormation and explanations received during the normal course of our audit,
management representations and compliance certificates submitted to the Board of
Directors by the officers of the Company charged with compliance and the same being
noted by the Board, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe that the
Company has not complied with the terms and conditions of registration stipulated by the
IRDAL;

c) We have verified the cash balances to the extent considered necessary, and securities
relating to the Company’s loans and investments as at March 31, 2025, by actual
inspection o~ on the basis of certificates / confirmations received from the concerned
branches and / HO personne! of the Company, Custodian and / or Depository Participants
appointed by the Company, as the case may be;

d) We have been given to understand by the management that the Company is.not a trustee

of any trust; and
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e) No part of the assets of the Policyholders’ Funds has been directly or indirectly applied in
contravention to the provisions of the Insurance Act, relating to the application and
investments of the Policyholders’ Funds.

Restriction on Use

8 This certificate is addressed to and provided to the Board of Directors of the Company, solely
for use of the Company for inclusion in the annual accounts of the Company in order to comply
with the provisions of paragraph 3 and 4 of Part Il of Schedule Il of the IRDA Financial
Statements Regulations and should not be used by any other person or for any other purpose
without our prior consent. We have no responsibility to update this certificate for events and
circumstances occurring after the date of this certificate. Accordingly, we do not accept or
assume any liatility or any duty of care for any other purpose or to any other person to whom
this Certificate is shown or into whose hands it may come without our prior consent in writing.

For NGS & Co. LLP For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration No. 119850W/W100013 Firm Registration No. 105049W
R.P. Soni S. S. Shah

Partner Partner

Membership No. 104796 Membership No. 033632

UDIN: 25104796BM-GUF8794 UDIN: 25033632BMMJTZ6776
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai

Date: April 23, 2025 Date: April 23, 2025
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ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)
IRDAI Registration No. 159 dated 18 December, 2017

Balance Sheet [Form B-BS)
As at March 31, 2025 [inn % Lakhs)
Schedul At At}
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024/
Sources of funds
Share capital 5 & SA 98,700.00 §7,100.00
Share application money-pend ng allotment = =
Reserves and Surplus ]
Fair value change account
Shareholders’ funds - 43.66
Policyholders' funds (840,54} 82.82
Borrowings 7 = 5
TOTAL 97,859.46 87,226.48
Application of funds
Investrmen:s - Shareholders 8 12,729.55 11,235.29
Investmen:s - Policyholders 8a 1,19,684.42 98,681.79
Loans 9 - -
Fixed assets 10 4,665.38 4,448.52
Deferred tax Asset [net) {refar Schedule 16 - Note ro. 5.2.11) - .
Current assets
Cash ond bank balances 11 2,755.48 1,917.41
Advances and other assets 12 74,277.11 49,244,73
Sub-Total 1A} 77,032.59 51,162.14
Deferred tax Liability (net} - -
Current liazilities 13 1,48,789.33 1,09,631.2%
Provisions 14 35,573.03 32,026.47
|Sub-Tota| B} 1,84,362.36 1,41,657.76
lNet [current Kiabilities) fcur-ent assets (C} = (A - B) (1,07,329.77) (90,495.62)
Miscellaneous expenditure (to the extent not written off or adjusted) 15 - -
|Debit balance in Profit and Loss Account 68,109.88 63,356.50
Total 97,859.46 87,226.48
Significant accaunting policies and notes to accounts 16

The schedules referred to above & notes to accounts form an integral part of Interim condensed Financial Statements

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES {® in Lakhs}
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Partly paid-up investments
2. Claims, other than agains- policies, not acknowledged as debts by the company . -

3. Underwriting commitrmerts outstanding {in respect of shares and securities) -
4. Guarantees given by or om behalf of the Company -
5. Statutory dernands/ liabil ties in dispute, not provided for 5,935 55% 4,736,105

6. Reinsurance obligations to the extent not provided for in accounts B

7 .Others & B
TOTAL §,935.55 4,736.15
As per aur attathed report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For NG5 & Co. LLP for Khandelwal Jain & Co. ashesh Shah
Chartered Accountants Chartered Accountants Chairman
Firm Regn No.: 119850W/\W 100013 Firm Regn No.: 105049W {DIN : 00008322} [DIN : 00079353)
K5~ W
/
R.P. Som S.5. SHah hdarshini Ghosh Andtid Jos
Partner Partner Monaging Director & CEQ Chief Financial Officer
Membership No: 104796 Membership No.033632 (DIN : 07151985)

UDIN | 25104796BMHGUF8754 UDIN - 25033632BMMITZE6776

T

Place: Mumbai Satmika Jain
April 23, 2025 Company Secretary




e C y Limited}

ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Ed
IRDA| Registration No. 159 dated 18 December, 2017

Profit and Loss Account {Form B-PL)

For the year ended March 31, 2025

{in % Lakhs)

Particulars

Schedule

Year ended|
March 31, 2025

Year ended
March 30, 2024

1. Operating Proflt / {Loss)
[a) Fire Insurance

156.24

[359.25)

{b} Marine Insurance

[4.64)

96.42)

2,824.17

{1,528.01)

{e) Miscellareaus

2. Income from investments

{a) Interest, Dividend & Rent — G (refer note na. 5.1.8)

1,015.88

1,36133

[b) Profit an sale / redemption of investments

197.40

(¢} Loss on sile / redemption of investmants

{0.71}

() Amortizztion of Premium / Discount on

17.13

3. Othar income

{a} Interest mcome on tax refune

12.83

4.43

[b] Profit or sale / discard of fixed assets

0.26

TOTAL (A}

4,418.66

1283.05}

4, Provisions {Jthar than taxation}

(8) For dimirution in the valug of knvestments {refer note n0. 5 1.8)

180.66

{41.89)

(b} For Doubtful debts

(c] Others

5. Other expantes

{a} Expenses ather than those relsted to insuranee business

(i) Emplomees’ remyneration ad othef expenses

27.62

25.82

[ii} Directars® fees

64.20

44.00

(iii) ROC Expenses

.00

1] Bad debes written off

(¢} Interest on Subordinated deb-3

{d) Expenses towards CSR activitiss

(e} Penalties irefer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.1.12}

(I} Contribution to Policyholders” Afc

{i} Towards excess of Expenses of Management [refer Sehedule 16 - Note no. 5.2.13)

§721.14

12,076.80

fii) Towards Remuneration of -AD/CEQ/WTRY Other KMP's

168.66

i) Others

75.21

g) Others

1} Loss on sale/discard of fixec assets

9.76

2.53

TOTAL (8)

9.172.04

12,185.47

|6. Prefit f {Loss) before tax

{8,753.38)

{12,468.53)

7. Provision for taxation:

!a Current tax

{b] Deferred tax {income) / Expense

&. Profit f {Lose) after tax

(4,753.38)

(12,468.53}

9. Appropriations

(3} lnterim dividends paid durirg the period

{b) Final d~adend paid

!C! Transfer to My Reserves or Jtner accounls

Balance of Prefit / (Loss) brought ferward from last year

(63,356.50}

(50,887.97)

Balance carried forward to Balance sheet

{68,109.38)

(63,356.50}

Basic and diluzed earnings per share (Face value of X 10 ¢ach)

-t0.51

X163

Significant accounting policies and notes to accounts

The schedules referred 10 abeve & notes to accounts form an integral part of Interim condensed Financial Statements

As per our attached report of evendate

Far NG5 & Co. LLP For Xhandelwal Jain & Co.
Chartered Accounton!s Chartered Accouniants
Firm Regn No.: 119850W/W100013  Firm Regn No.: 105049W

R. P. Soni 3. 3. Shal

Partner Fartner

Membership Mo: 104796
UDIN ; 25104796BMHGUFET94

Membership No.033632
UDIN : 25033632BMMITZE776

Place: Mumbai
April 23, 2026

16

Rashesh Shah
Chawrmnan
{DIN . GDOOB322)

-~

h| hdar@osh

Managing Director &
CEQ
{DiN . O7191985)

umika Jain
Company Secretary

{DiN - 00079353}

Anand lesh

Chief Finoneiol Officer

Y



ZUNO General Insurance Limited {f rly b a5 Edel

IRDAI Registration No. 159 dated -8 December, 2017

General Insurance Company Limited)

Revenue Account {Form B-RA)
For the year ended March 31, 2025 (ln hd ukhsl
Particulars Fire Marine Miscetlaneous Total
Schedule|  £Y 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 F¥ 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
1. Premiums earned {Net] 1 1,075.89 §96.33 48.23 7.92 57,125.50 39,518.25 58,249.62 40,422.50
2. Profit / (Loss) on sale/redemption of investments 118.97 70.72 3.92 2.80 2,866.56 1,697.70 2,989.45 1,771.22
3. Interest, Dividend & Rent— Gross (Notel} 469.43 38161 9.53 7.51 6,988.31 4,556.04 7.467.27 4,945.16
4, Others -
(3) Other income
{i) Foreign exchange gain / {loss) - (0.18) - {0.18)
{ii) Miscellaneous Income . 137.35 34.66 137.35 34,66
{b) Contribution from Sharehclders’ Account
{i) Towards Excess of Expenses ol Management 32.79 8,721.14 12,044.01 8,711.14 12,076.80
{ii) Towards ion of MD/CEQ/WTD/ Othér KMF's 3.65 1.75 0.09 0.03 164.92 73.43 158.66 75.21
{iii} Others
TOTAL {A) 1,667.94 1,383.20 61.77 18.26 76,003.78 57,923.91 77,7133.49 53,325.37
5. Claims Incurred {Net) 2 159.82 754.43 51.52 98.94 46,218.26 32,553.67 46,469.60 33,407.04
6. Commission {Net] 3 407.26 224.88 5.08 605 9,111.01 5,543.95 9.523.35 $,774.68
7. Operating expenses rélated to ingurance business 4 704,62 763.14 9.81 2.69 17,850.34 21,354.31 18,564.77 22,127.14
3, Premium deficiency -
TOTAL {B} 1,311.70 1,742.45 66.41 114.68 73,175.61 59,451.93 74,587.72 51,309.06
2. Oparating Proflt / (Loss) C= (A -B) 356.24 (359.25)} (4.64) {36.42} 2,824.17 (1,528.01) 3,175.77 {1,983.68}
Appropriatians
Transfer Lo Shaceholders' Account 356.24 {359.25) (4.64) {36.42) 2,824.17 {1,528.01) 3,175.77 {1,983.68)
Transfer to Catastrophe Reserve -
Transfer to Other Reserves
TOTAL {C} 356.24 1359.25) {4.58) (96.42) 2,824.17 {1.528.01) 3,175.77 {1,983.68)
{in ® Lakhs]
Pertaining to Policyholder's funds Fire Marine Miscel Total
FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2024-2% FY 2023-24 FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24
Interest, Dividend & Rent 199,11 1% 45 CEE] 6.58 B,143.05 3,981.36 6,510.69 4,153.79
Add/Less:-
Investment Expenses - - - - . ' -
Amortisation of Premium/ Distount on iInvestrments 0.e5 246 10 003 T o PR Tis wh 587.61
Arnount written off in respect of deprecated investments . - - - -
Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts - -
Provision for diminution in the value of ather than actively trad=d Equities - -
Ilnvestment incame from ool 19ES 1% a0 - 126 1146 191.12 203.76
| dend & Rent — Gross* 469.43 331,61 9.53 7.51 65,988.31 4,556.04 7,467.27 4,945.16
* Term gross implies inelusive of TDS
Significant accounting policies and nates to accounts i
The schedules referred to above & notes te accounts form ar imtegral part of Interim cond d financial
Ag per sur attached report of even date For and on behaif of the Baard

For NGS5 & Co. LLP For Khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chortered Acecuntants Chortered Atcountorts
Firm Regn No.: 1E9850W/W100013  Firm Regn No.: 105099W

.
R. P. Soni S.5. Shah

Portner Partner

Membership Ne: 104796 Membership No.033632

UDIN - 25104796BMHGUF754 UDIN - 256336328MMITZ6776

Place: Murnbai
April 23, 2025

{DIN . 00008322

Shubhdarshini Ghosh

Managing Direclor & CEO

{DIN . 07121985}

Saurnika Jain
Company Secretory

{DIN - 06079353}




ZUNO General Insurance Limited {formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited})

IRDAI Registration No. 159 dated 18 December, 2017

Receipts and Payments Account {Direct Basis)

{® in Lakhs})
A. Cash Flows fram the operating activities: For year ended For Year ended March
March 31,2025 31, 2024

1 Premium receved from policyholders, including advance receipts 1,19,064.24 1,02,335.28
2 Other receipts - {including Terrorism Pool) {Net) 191.12 238.41
3 Payments to tne re-insurers, net of commissions and claims {7,993.23) {5,996.01}
4 Payments to co-insurets, net of claims recovery {699.67) 82.13
5 Payments of ¢ aims {49,028.64) {30,154.43}
6 Payments of commission and brokerage {21,722.58) {15,094.06}
7 Payments of cther operating expenses {19,280.35) {20,344.24}
g Preliminary ard other pre operative expenses - -

9 Deposits, advznces and staff loans 228.62 (262.68}
10 Income Taxes paid {Net) {5.603.80) (4,160.25}
11 GST and service tax paid {10,181.57) (7,438.77}
12 Other paymerts - -

13 Cash flows besore extraordinary items 4,674.13 19,205.40
14 Cash flow from extraordinary operations =
15 Net cash flow from operating activities 4,674.13 19,205.40

B. Cash Flows from investing activities:

16 Purchase of fixed assets (1,764 56} {1,885.31)
17 Proceeds frorr sale of fixed assets -

18 Purchases of investments {1,10,275.80} {44,821.55)
19 Leans disbursed = -

20 Sales of invest-nents 65,78,950.15 2,828.30

21 Repayments received = -

22 Rents/Interests/ Dividends received 6,405.27 6,770.02

23 Investments ir money market instruments and in liquid mutual funds (Net) {5,88,751.10) -

24 Expenses related to investments -

25 Net cash flow “rom investing activities (15,436.05) {37,108.54)
C. Cash Flows frem financing activities:

26 Proceeds from issuance of share capital 11,600.00 19,300.00

27 Proceeds from borrowing - .

28 Repayments of borrowing -

29 Interest/dividends paid - .

30 Net cash flow ‘rom linancing activities 11,600.00 19,300.00

D. Effect of foreign exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents, net

E. Met increase i cash and cash equival 838.08 1,396.85
1 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 1,917.41 520.56
2 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 2,755.48 1917.41

As per our attached report of even date

For NGS & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn No.: 119850W/W100013

R. P. Sani
Partrner
Membership No: 104796

UDIN: 25104 796BMHGUF8794

Place: Mumbai
April 23, 2025

For khandelwal Jain & Co.
Chortered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 105049W

é

5.5.5kah

Partier

Menmrbership No.033632

UDIM: 25033632BMMITZ6776

.

For and cn behalf of the

Chairman
{DIN : 00008322}

Shubhdarshini Ghosh
Executive Director &
(DIN : 07191985)

Director
{DIN : 00079353)

Chief Finencial Officer

Spasebarge”

Saumika Jain
Company Secretary
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ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule forming par= of the financial statements

Schedule -5
Share Capital {in % Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Authcrised Capital
2,000,000,000 {previous year : 2,000,000,000) Equity Shares of X 10 each 2,00,000.00 2,00,000.00
2. Issued Capital
98,70,00,000 (previous year : 87,10,00,000) Equity Shares of ® 10 each 98,700.00 87,100.00
3. Subsaribed Capital
98,70,00,000 (previous year : 87,10,00,000) Equity Shares of % 10 each 98,700.00 87,100.00
4. Called up Capital
93,70,00,000 (previous year : 87,10,00,000) Equity Shares of X 10 each 98,700.00 87,100.00
Less : Czlls unpaid
Add : Equity Shares forfeited [Amount originally paid up)
Less : Pzar value of EqLity Shares bought back - -
Less : (i} Preliminary Expenses - -
(i} Expenses including commission or brokerage on

underwriting or subscription of shares -
Total 98,700.00 87,100.00
Note:

Of the above, 98,70 00,000 shares are held by the holding company and its nominess, Edelweiss Financial Services Limited and its

nominees (previous year : 87,10,00,000 shares)

Schedule — SA
Pattern of shareholding {As certified by the Management}
Shareholder At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Number of Shares % of Holding Number of Shares % of Holding
Promaoters
- Indian (Edelweiss Financial Services Ltd.}) 98,70,00,000 100.00% 87,10,00,000 100.00%
- Foreign - 0.00% - 0.00%
Investors
- Indian 0.00% 0.00%
- Foreign 0.00% 0.00%
Others
Incian 0.00% 0.00%
- Foreign - 0.00% 0.00%
Total 98,70,00,000 100.00% 87,10,00,000 100.00%




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule forming part of the financial statements

Schedule — 6

Reserves and Surplus

(in X Lakhs)

Particulars

At

March 31, 2025

At
March 31, 2024

. Capital Reserve

. Capital Redemption Reserve

. Share Premium

. Revaluation Reserve

nllwinN -

. General Reserves

Less: Amount utilized for Buy-back

Less: Amount utilized for issue of Bonus shares

[

. Catastrophe Reserve

-~

. Other Reserves

8. Balance of Profit in Profit and Loss Account

TOTAL




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)
Schedule forming pzrt of the financial statements

Schedule-7
Borrowings (in X Lakhs)
Particulars At At

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Debentures/ Boncs - S
2. Banks - -
3. Financial Institutiors S &
4. Others - -
Total = =




ZUNO General Insurance Limited {f Iy known as Edel | e Comp L 1]
Schedule fosming part of the finencial statements
Schedule- 8 3 3A
Investments {in ® Lakhs}
Particulars SCH-8 SCH-BA
Shar Policyholders Total
At At At At At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2023 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Long term ir
! e agee = d bonds inclading 3,264.50 1,756.37 31,914.21 28,228.05 35,178.71 20,984.42
Freasury Bills
2. Other Approved Securities 4,885.98 2,989.9) 4,885.98 2,989.91
3. Other Investments - g s -
a) Shares
{aa} Equity = =
{bb] Preference E + =
{b) Mutual Funds . -
{c} Denivative Instruments kel 1 g El - 3
{d) Debentures/ Bands 3,504.21 2,497.63 12,069.01 8,546.71 15,5673.22 11,044.34
{e} Other Secufities
(i) Fixed deposits 4.500.00 5,000.00 4,500.00 5,000.00
{f) Subsidiarses e = = ]
| (g} Investrment Properties-Real Esate - 3,502.87 1.002.85 3,502.87 1,003.85
4 Ir in inlrastructure and Housing 4,372.54 3.150.89 16,798.51 13,435.53 21,171.05 16,586.42
S, Other than Approved Investments 988.27 1,821.48 7,763.31 3,134138 875158 4,955.66
Less - Provision for diminution n value of Investments (180.66) . - (180.66)! g
Tatal Long Term 11,948.86 9,226.37 81,433.8% 62,338.23 93,382.75 71,564.60
Short term
1 Government securities and Gosetnment guaranteed bonds including 488.94 393771 987.9% 39377 1,476.93
Treasury Bills
2. Other Approved Securities 50.22 105.68 50.22 105.68
3. Other Investments - +
{a} Shares
{aa) Equity = 5,854.30 3,939.58 5,854.30 3.939.58
bb) Preference - - .
{b} Mutual Funds - 7.4B5.81 782942 7,485 .81 7.829.42
{c) Derivateve Instruments 2 R
[d} Debentures/ Bonds £,699.04 12,265 76 5.699 04 12,265.76
(=) Othet Securities
{i} Fixed deposits z 1,500.00 2,750.00 500.00 2,750.00 2.000.00
(f) Subsidiares. N . =
(!] Investment Properties-Real Estate - 258.16 2,325.34 258.16 2,525.34
4. Investments in Infrastructure snc Housing 100.03 19.98 10,849.42 5,191 13 10.949.45 5,211.11
S. Other than Approved Investments 680.66 . 1,365.87 3,198.66 2,046.53 3,138.66
Total Short Term 780.69 2,008.92 38,250.53 36,343.56 39,031.22 38,352.48
Total investmants 12,729.55 11,235.29 1,15,684.42 9865179 1,32.413.97 1,09,817.08
Aggregate value of Investments otber than Listed Equity ities and Deri
{ia R Lakhs)
Particylarg Shareholders Poleyhokders Toual
At At At At At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024 March 31, 2028 March 31, 2024
Long Term Ievestmenty;
Bogk Value 12.115.88 9.176.25 £1,097.31 62,172.77 93.213.19 71,349.02
|Marhel Valug 12,309.00 9.220.00 82,586.12 62.681.33 95.295.12 71,301.33
Short Term Investmenis:
Book Value 781.17 2,003.15 35,042.69 3129948 39.823.86 33.302.63
Markel Value 780.74 2.009.02 3E,233.44 31,512.22 39,064 18 33,521.24




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule forming part of the financial statements

Schedule- 9

Loans

{in X Lakhs)

Particulars

At
March 31, 2025

At
March 31, 2024

1. Security wise classification

Secured

{a) On mortgage of property

(aa) In India

{bb) Outside India

(b) On Shares, Bords, Govt. Securities

(c) Others

Unsecured

Total

2. Borrower wise classification

{a) Central and 5tzte Governments

{b) Banks and Finzncial Institutions

(¢€) Subsidiaries

(d) Industrial Undertakings

(e} Companies

{f) Others

Total

3. Performance wise classification

{a) Loans classified as standard

{aa) In India

(bb) Outside Incia

(b} Non-performing loans less provisions

(aa) In India

{bb) Outside India

Total

4, Maturity wise classification

{a) Short Term

{b) Long Term

Total

Provisions against Mon-performing Loans

{in X Lakhs)

Non-Performing Loans

Loan Amount

Provision

Sub-standard

Doubtful

Loss

Total

Note:- There are no loans subject to restructuring {Previous year X Nil).
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ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule forming part of he financial statements

Schedule - 11
Cash and Bank Balances {in X Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Cash {inchuding cheques, drafts and stamps) 213.66 155.91
2. Bank balances
{a} Deppsit Accounts
(aa) Short-term {d.e within 12 months} -
{bb) Others . -
(b) Current Accounts 2,541.82 1,760.50
(c) Others -
3. Money at Call and Short Notice
{a) With Banks
{b} With other Institut ons =
4. Others -
Total 2,755.48 1,917.41
Balance with non-scheduled banks included in (2) above - -
Cash and Bank balances
In India 2,755.48 1,917.41
Qutside India - -
*Chegques on hand amouat X 86.82 Lakhs, Previous Year: TNIL
Schedule - 12
Advances and Other Assets {in X Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Advances
1. Reserve deposits with ceding companies 1,054.05 713.37
2. Application money for nvestments 400.00 -
3. Prepayments 252.45 216.97
4, Advances to Directors  Officers - -
5. Advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source {net of provision for tax) 277.85 238.35
6. Goods & Service Tax Credit 871.82 537.94
7. Others
(i} - Sundry Advances & Deposits 768.78 892.87
(i} - Surplus in Gratuity fund . 5
(iii) - Advance to Employees against expenses . -
{iv) - Deposit with GST Authority 203.12 203.12
Total (A) 3,828.07 2,802.62
Other Assets
1. Income accrued on investments/deposits 3,409.50 2,081.71
2. Qutstanding Premiurms - -
Less : Provisions for doabtful debts - -
3. Agents’ Balances g 5
4. Foreign Agencies Balarces - -
5. Due from other Entities carrying on Insurance business (including reinsurers) 67,001.65 44,094.87
Less : Provisions for doabtful debts - -
6. Due from subsidiaries ./ holding company - -
7. Investments held for Unclaimed amount of Policyholders 29.25 50.00
8. Interest / Investment income on investments held for Unclaimed amount of
. 6.64 7.52
Policyholders
9. Others
{i} - Unsettied investmert contract receivable - 205.57
(i) - Investment Receivabie on maturity - -
{iii) - Margin deposit 2.00 2.00
{iv) - Salvage stock - .
{v) - Sundry receivable - 0.44
Total (B} 70,449.04 46,442.11
Total (A+B) 74,277.11 49,244.73
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Current Liabilities {in X Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Agents’ Balances 95.05 142.70
2. Balances due to other insurance companies 60,705.46 41,148.95
3. Deposits held on re-insarance ceded &
4. Premiums received in zdvance S
(a) For Long term policies 7,947.86 5,345.83
{b) For Other policies 1,481.55 220.95
5. Unallocated Premium 4,092.07 4,979.18
6. Sundry Creditors 7,267.12 8,099.66
7. Due to subsidiaries/ hclding company 9.46 7.50
8. Claims OuJtstanding {gross) 66,481.91 49,111.27
9. Due to Officers/ Directars - -
10, Unclaimed amount of policyholders (refer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.2.9) 6.42 5.49
11. Income accrued on Unclaimed amount {refer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.2.9) 6.64 7.52
12. Interest payable on Debentures/Bonds -
13. Goods & Service Tax Liabilities
14. Others:
{i) - Statutory Dues 685.29 555.20
{ii) - Salary Payable 10.50 7.04
{iii} - Collections - Environment Relief fund 2
{iv] - Unsettled investment contract payable -
{v) - Employee rewards
{vi} - Deposits - -
{vii) - Interim dividends payable
{viii) - Dividend distribut on tax on interim dividend
{ix) - Dividend on Investment received in advance
Total 1,48,789.33 1,09,631.29
Details of wnclaimed amounts and Investment Income thereon {in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Opening Balance 13.01 14.35
Add: Amount transferrec to unclaimed amount 1.91 0.04
Add: Cheques issued out of the unclaimed amount but not encashed by the
policyholders
Add: Investment lncome {0.87) 3.68
Less: Amount paid during the period/year 0.98 5.06
Less: Transferred to SCWF - -
Closing Balance of Unclzimed Amount 13.06 13.01
IScheduIe -14
|Provisions {in ¥ Lakhs)
Particulars At At
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
1. Reserve for unearned premium reserve 34,269.18 30,564.73
2. Reserve for premium deficiency
3. For taxation {less advance tax paid and taxes deducted at source)
4. For Emgloyee Benefits
(a} - Gratuity {refer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.1.9 (b)) 449.02 338.47
{b) - Accrued leave {refer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.1.9 {c]) 118.35 98.35
{c) - Long Term Incentive Plan {refer Schedule 16 - Note no. 5.1.9 {d}) 736.48 1,024.92
5. Others - -
35,573.03 32,026.47
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Miscellaneous expenditure
{To the extent not written off or adjusted) {in % Lakhs)
Particulars At At

March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

1. Discount allowed on issue of shares/ debentures - -
2. Others .

Total
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ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General
Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

1. Background

ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General Insurance Company Limited)
(‘the Company’) was incorporated on March 2, 2016, as a company under the Companies Act, 2013.
The Company is registered with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (‘IRDAI’)
vide license no.159 on December 18, 2017 and is in the business of underwriting general insurance
policies.

2, Basis of preparation of Financial Statements

The financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the generally accepted
accounting principles followed in India under the historical cost convention, unless otherwise
specifically stated, on accrual basis of accounting, in accordance with the recognition and
measurement principles laid down in Accounting Standard (“AS"”) 25, “Interim Financial Reporting”
referred to in section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, and in accordance with the provisions of the
Insurance Act, 1938, Insurance Laws (Amendment} Act, 2015 (to the extent notified), Insurance
Regulatory and Development Authority Act, 1999, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of
India (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (‘the Regulations’)
and orders / directions prescribed by the IRDAI in this behalf, the provisions of the Companies Act,
2013 (to the extent applicable) in the manner so required and current practices prevailing within the
insurance industry in India.

The financial statements are presented in Indian rupees and rounded off to the nearest lakh.
3. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles followed in India requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as of the balance sheet date, reported amounts of revenues
and expenses for the year ended and disclosure of contingent liabilities as of the balance sheet date.
The estimates and assumptions used in these financial statements are based upon management’s
evaluation of the relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the financial statements. Actual
resutts may differ from those estimates. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future periods.

4, Significant Accounting Policies

4.1 Revenue Recognition
Premium income
Premium (net of goods and service tax), including reinstatement premium on direct business and
reinsurance accepted, other than for Long term motor insurance policies for new cars and new two
wheelers (‘Long-term motor insurance policies’) issued on and after September 1, 2018, having term
of more than one year, is recognized as income at the commencement of risk over the contract period
or the period of risk, whichever is appropriate, on a gross basis and for installment cases, it is
recognized on installment due dates.

Premium for Long term motor policies issued on and after September 1, 2018, premium is recognized
basis Own Damage coverage premium in accordance with the movement in IDV (Insured declared value)

Notes to §




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General
Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

on a yearly basis over the policy period and Third Party coverage premium is recognized equally on a
yearly basis over the pclicy period/duration at the commencement of risk on 1/n basis where ‘n’

denotes the term of the policy period/duration in years.

In accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Actuarial, Finance
and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (‘the Regulations’) and Master circular dated
May 17, 2024, with effect from October 01, 2024, the Company has recognized premium on applicable

Long term products {exctuding Motor) equally on a yearly basis over the policy period/duration on 1/n
basis where ‘n’ denotes the term of the policy period/duration in years.

Reinstatement premium is recorded as and when such premiums are recovered. Any subsequent
revisions to premium are recognized in the year in which they occur over the remaining period of risk
or contract period, as applicable. Adjustments to premium income arising on cancellation of policies

are recognized in the period in which they are cancelled.

Commission income from reinsurance ceded

Commission on reinsurarce ceded is recognized as income on ceding of reinsurance premium in the

period of ceding of risk.

Profit commission under reinsurance treaties, wherever applicable, is recognized as income in the year
of final determination of profits as confirmed by reinsurers and combined with commission on

reinsurance ceded.

Income earned on investments

Interest on investments and rental income on investment properties are recognized on accrual basis.

Accretion of discount and amortization of premium relating to debt securities is recognized on a

constant yield to maturity basis over the holding / maturity period

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. Dividend income in
respect of listed equity shares, preference shares and infrastructure investment trust (InviT) is

recognized on ex-dividerd date.

The net realized gains or losses on the debt securities are the difference between the net sale
consideration and the amortized cost, which is computed on a weighted average basis and recognized
as on the date of sale. In case of listed equity shares, preference shares and mutual fund units, the
profit or loss on sale of investments also includes the accumulated changes in the fair value previously
recognized under “Fair value change account”. The difference between the acquisition price and the
maturity value of treasury bills is recognized as income in the revenue accounts or the profit and loss
account, as the case may be, over the remaining term of these instruments on a yield to maturity

basis.

Sale consideration for the purpose of realized gain / loss is net of brokerage and taxes, if any, and

excludes interest received on sale.

4.2 Premium received in advance

Premium received in advance represents premium received in respect of policies issued during the
year, where the risk commences subsequent to the Balance Sheet date and in case of Long-term

insurance policies it is premium allocated to the subsequent periods.

Motes to Accounts 2 of 35
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Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

4.3 Reinsurance Ceded

Insurance premium on ceding of the risk other than Long-term insurance policies is recognized in the
period in which the risk commences in accordance with reinsurance arrangements with the reinsurers.

In case of Long-term insurance policies reinsurance premium is recognized on the insurance premium
allocated for the year in accordance with reinsurance arrangements with the reinsurers.

Any subsequent revisions to, refunds or cancellations of premiums are recognized in the year in which
they occur.

Premium on excess of loss reinsurance cover is accounted as per the terms of the reinsurance
arrangements.

Adjustment to reinsurance premium arising on cancellation of policies is recognized in the period in
which they are cancellec.

4.4 Reserve for Unexpired Risk

Reserve for unexpired risk represent that part of net written premium which is attributable to and
allocated to the succeed ng accounting periods. Reserve for unexpired risk is calculated on net written
premium on all unexpired policies at the balance sheet date based on 1/365" method for all segments,
other than Edelweiss Switch product which is introduced under the IRDAI {Regulatory Sandbox)
Regulations 2019 and Health insurance policies with Health 241 Add ON cover. In Marine Hull business
it is subject to a minimum of 100%.

In Switch product, the unexpired risk for Accidental damage cover is calculated on basis its usages i.e.
used premium is accounted as earned premium and unused portion is accounted as unexpired risk
reserve and for Fire & theft cover the unexpired risk is calculated on net written premium based on
1/365" method.

in Health insurance policies with Health 241 Add ON cover; the unexpired risk is calculated on net
written premium on all unexpired policies at the balance sheet date based on:

a) 1/730 basis where there is no claim reported in the 1% year of policy.
b) 1/365 basis where the claim is reported in the 1* year of policy.

4.5 Premium deficiency

In accordance with IRDAl Master Circular on Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers
dated May 17, 2024, Premium Deficiency Reserve (‘PDR’) is recognized at segmental revenue account
level, when the sum of expected net claim costs, related expenses and maintenance costs (related to
claims handling) exceed -he reserve for unexpired risks. The premium deficiency is calculated and duly
certified by the Appointed Actuary.
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Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

4.6 Acquisition costs

Acquisition costs are those costs that vary with, and are primarily related to the acquisition of new
and renewal of insurance contracts viz. commission, policy issue expenses etc. These costs are
expensed in the period / year in which they are incurred except for Long-term motor insurance policies
for which commission is expenses at the applicable rates on the premium allocated for the year.

4.7 Claims Incurred

Claims incurred comprise of claims paid {(net of salvage and other recoveries), change in estimated
liability for outstanding claims made following a loss occurrence reported and estimated liability for
claims Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) and claims Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER).
Further, claims incurred also include specific ctaim settlement costs comprising survey fees, legal
expenses and other directly attributable costs.

Claims (net of amounts receivable from reinsurers/coinsurers}) are recognized on the date of intimation
based on internal management estimates or on estimates from surveyors/insured in the respective
revenue account(s).

Estimated liability for outstanding claims at balance sheet date is recorded net of claims recoverable
from / payable to co-insurers / reinsurers, salvage to the extent there is certainty of realization and
other recoveries. Salvaged stock is recognized at estimated net realizable value based on independent
valuer’s report.

Estimated liability for outstanding claims is determined by the management on the basis of ultimate
amounts likely to be paid on each claim, established by the management in light of past experience
and progressively modified for changes as appropriate, on availability of further information and in
cases where claim payment period exceeds four years based on actuarial valuation. These estimates
include claim settlement costs likely to be incurred to settle outstanding claims.

IBNR reserves are provisions for claims that may have been incurred during the accounting period but
have not been reported or claimed. The IBNR provision also includes provision, for claims that have
been incurred but are nst enough reported (IBNER). The provision for [BNR and IBNER is based on
actuarial estimate duly certified by the Appointed Actuary of the Company. The actuarial estimate is
derived in accordance with relevant IRDAI regulations and Guidance Note GN 21 issued by the Institute
of Actuaries of India. The Appointed Actuary has certified that the methodology and assumptions used
to estimate the liability are appropriate and in accordance with guidelines and norms issued by the
Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the IRDAI regulations.

4.8 Allocation of expenses

Expenses which are directly attributable and identifiable to the business segments shall be allocated
to the respective business segment.

Expenses which are not directly attributable and identifiable to the business segments shall be
apportione the basis of Net written premium of the respective business segment.

Notes to Accounts
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4.9 Investments

Investments are made and accounted for in accordance with the Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by
Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015, and, Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India

(Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024.

Investments are recorded at cost on trade date and include brokerage, taxes, transfer charges etc. as

applicable and exclude interest accrued up to the date of purchase.

Classification

- Investments maturing within twelve months from balance sheet date and investments made with the
specific intention to be disposed off within twelve months from balance sheet date are classified as

‘short term investments’.

- Investments other than ‘short term investments’ are classified as ‘long term investments’.

Shareholders and Policyholders fund are segregated on a ‘notional basis’ as per the IRDAI Master
Circular on Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers dated May 17, 2024, and on the
basis of such segregation the investments are allocated to Shareholders and Policyholders on security

level basis.
Valuation
Investments are valued as follows:

Debt securities

All debt securities including government securities and Additional Tier 1 perpetual bonds are
considered as ‘held to maturity’ and accordingly stated at amortized cost determined after
amortization of premium or accretion of discount on a constant yield basis in the revenue account and

profit and loss account over the holding period/maturity.

The realized gain or loss is the difference between the sale consideration and the amortized cost in

the books of the Company as on the date of sale determined on weighted average cost basis.

Equity shares and Preference shares

Listed equities and preference shares at the balance sheet date are stated at fair value, being the last
quoted closing price on the National Stock Exchange and in case these are not listed on National Stock

Exchange, then based on the last quoted closing price on the Bombay Stock Exchange.

Unlisted equity / preference shares and other than actively traded equity / preference shares are
stated at historical cost subject to provision for diminution, if any, in the value of such investment

determined separately far each individual investment.

The realized gain or loss on the listed and actively traded equities is the difference between the sale
consideration and the carrying cost as on the date of sale, determined on a weighted average cost
basis and includes the accumulated changes in the fair value previously taken to the fair value change
account, in respect of the particular security; such gain or loss is transferred to revenue account and

profit and loss ac on the trade date.
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Mutual funds & Alternative Investment Fund (AIF)

Mutual fund & AIF investments are stated at fair value, being the closing net asset value at balance

sheet date.

The realized gain or lcss on the mutual fund & AIF units is the difference between the sale
consideration and the carrying cost as on the date of sale, determined on a weighted average cost
basis and includes the aczumulated changes in the fair value previously taken to the fair value change
account, in respect of the particular security; such gain or loss is transferred to revenue account and

profit and loss account 01 the trade date.

Investment properties - Real Estate

Investment Properties- Real Estate are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment (if any).
Investrnents other than those mentioned above are valued at cost.

Fair value change account

In accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Actuarial, Finance
and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024, unrealized gain / loss arising due to changes

in fair value of listed equity shares, Alternate Investment Fund, preference shares, mutual fund

investments and security receipts are taken to the ‘fair value change account’. This balance in the fair

value change account is not available for distribution, pending realization.

Impairment of investments

The Company assesses at each Balance Sheet date whether any impairment has occurred in respect of

investments. The impairment loss, other than considered temporary, if any, is recognized in the profit

and loss account and the carrying value of such investment is reduced to its recoverable value. If on

the assessment at balance sheet date a previously impaired loss no longer exists, then such loss is
reversed to the profit and loss account and the asset is restated to that extent.

4.10 Fixed assets and depreciation
Fixed assets acquired by the company are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment loss, if any. Cost includes the purchase price and any cost directly attributable to bring
the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Depreciation is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended
use or the date it is put to use, whichever is earlier. In respect of asset sold, depreciation is provided
upto the date of disposal.

Depreciable amount for tangible assets is the cost of an asset, less its estimated residual value at 5%.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has evaluated the
useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of Part C of the Schedule Il

of the Act for calculating the depreciation.

Notes to Accounts 6 of 35
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The estimated useful lives of fixed assets are as follows:

Categories of Asset Estimated Useful Life
Building 60 years
Furniture and Fittings 10 years
Vehicles : 8 years
Office Equipment 5 years
Computers - Servers and Networks 6 years
Computers - End user devises, such as desktops, laptops etc. 3 years

Leasehold improvements and premises are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the estimated

useful lives of the assets or the period of lease, whichever is shorter.
Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress includes assets not ready for the intended use and are carried at cost,

comprising direct cost and related incidental expenses and advances paid if any for purchase of fixed

assets,

Intangible fixed assets

Intangible fixed assets are recorded at the consideration paid for the acquisition of such assets and

are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment, if any.
Intangibles such as software are amortized over a period of 5 years on straight line basis.

Impairment of assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an asset may
be impaired based on internal / external factors. If any such indication exists, the company estimates
the recoverable amount of the asset. The recoverable amount is the greater of the net selling price
and the value in use of thase assets. Value in use is arrived at by discounting the estimated future cash
flows to their present va.ue based on an appropriate discounting factor. If such recoverable amount
of the asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than
its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is
treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and loss. If, at the balance
sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the
recoverable amount is reassessed, and the asset is recognized at the recoverable amount subject to a

maximum of the deprecizble historical cost.

4.11 Right to Use of Asset

Leases, where the lessor effectively retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the
leased item, are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments are recognized as an expense

on straight line basis in the revenue accounts, as per the lease terms.

Notes to Accounts 7 of 35
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4.12 Employee benefits

The accounting policy followed by the Company in respect of its employee benefit schemes in
accordance with Accounting Standard 15 (revised 2005), is set out below:

All short-term employee benefits are accounted on undiscounted basis during the accounting period
based on services renderad by employees.

Provident fund

The Company contributes to a recognized provident fund which is a defined contribution scheme
payable to the Regional Provident Fund Authority. The contributions are provided on the basis of
prescribed percentage of salary and are charged to revenue account(s) and profit and loss account.

Gratuity

The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in respect of
the gratuity benefit is ca.culated by estimating the amount of future benefit that the employees have
earned in return for their service in the current and prior periods. Such benefit is discounted to
determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets, if any, is deducted.

The present value of the abligation under such benefit plan is determined based on actuarial valuation
using the Projected Unit Credit Method.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions
are recognized in the revenue account in the period in which they arise.

Compensated absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of their annual
leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company recognizes the charge to
the Revenue/Profit & Loss account and corresponding liability on account of such non-vesting
accumulated leave entitlement based on a valuation by an independent actuary.

Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has Long Term Incentive Plan (‘LTIP’) for selected employees of the Company. The plan
is a discretionary deferred compensation plan. It is a rolling plan with annual accruals and a defined
payment schedule. The Company recognizes the charge to the Revenue/Profit & Loss account and
corresponding liability in Balance Sheet based on a valuation by an independent actuary.

4.13 Foreign currency transactions

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded at the rates prevailing on the date of the
transaction. Foreign excnange denominated monetary assets and liabilities, are restated at the rates
prevalent at the date of the balance sheet. The gains/losses on account of restatement and settlement
are recognized n the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account.

The premium or discount arising at the inception of a forward exchange contract, not intended for
trading or speculation purpose, is amortized as expense or income as the case may be over the life of
the contract. Exchan -
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Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
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of the contract period is recognized in the revenue account(s) and profit and loss account. Any profit
or loss arising on cancellation or roll-over of such a forward exchange contract is recognized as income
or expense for the contract period.

4.14 Taxation
Direct taxes

Income-tax expenses comprise of current tax (i.e., amount of tax for the year determined in the
accordance with the income-tax act, 1961) and deferred tax charge or credit (reflecting the tax effect
of timing differences between accounting income and taxable income for the period).

Provision of current tax is recognized based on estimated tax liability computed after adjusting for
allowances, disallowances and exemptions in accordance with the tax laws applicable.

In accordance with the recommendations contained in guidance note issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India, Minimum Alternate Tax (‘“MAT’) credit is recognized as an asset to the
extent there is convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax in future by way of
a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit entitlement.

The deferred tax charge or credit and the corresponding deferred tax liabilities or assets are
recognized using the tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent there is reasonable certainty with
convincing evidence that the assets can be realized in future; however, where there is unabsorbed
depreciation or carried forward loss under taxation law, deferred tax assets are recognized only if
there is virtual certainty of realization of such assets. Deferred tax assets are reviewed as at each
balance sheet date and written down or written up to reflect the amount that is reasonable/virtually
certain (as the case may be) to be realized.

Indirect taxes

The Company claims credit of GST on input services, which is set off against tax on output services.
The unutilized credits towards GST on input services are carried forward for future set-off, under
Advances and Other Assets, wherever there is reasonable certainty of utilization.

4.15 Earning per share

Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to
equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
the purpose of calculatirg diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year attributable
to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are
adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

4,16 Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

Provisions are recognizec in the accounts in respect of present probable obligations as a result of past
event, the amount of which can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the obligation at the balance sheet
date. These are review t each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimates.
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Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations which may arise from past events,
but their existence or otherwise would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. When there is an
obligation in respect of which likelihood of outflow of resources is remote, no provision or disclosure
is made.

Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed.

4.17 Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand, cheques in hand and demand deposits with banks. Cash equivalents are
short-term balances (with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition),
highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

4.18 Receipts and Payment account (Cash flow statement)

Receipts and Payment account is prepared under the Direct Method and reported in conformity with
Para 2.(a)(i) of the Master Circular on Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers dated
May 17, 2024, issued by the IRDAI.

5. Notes to Accounts
5.1. Statutory disclosures as required by the IRDAI

5.1.1. Contingent liabilities
N (Amounts in X Lakhs)
Sr. | Particulars As at As at

No March 31, 2025 | March 31, 2024
1 Partly-paid up investments - -
2 Claims, other than those under policies, not - -
acknowledged as debt

3 | Underwriting commitments outstanding - §
4 Guarantees given oy or on behalf of the Company - -
5 Statutory demands/liabilities in dispute, not 5,935.55 4,736.15
provided for
6 Reinsurance obligations to the extent not - - |
rovided for in accounts

Note: (1) The Company had received the show cause cum demand notice from DGGI Directorate General
of GST Intelligence (‘Authority’) Mumbai (SCN) of ¥ 1,172.67 Lakhs (previous year: 1,172.67 Lakhs)
pertaining to the period July 2017 to FY 2021-22. The Authority has disputed input tax credit (ITC) availed
of and utilised by the Company arising out of availment of certain services. Based on the information /
documentation available with the Company, it believes that the ITC arising out of such services, are
utilised in compliance with the provisions of applicable laws and regulations. The company had filed the
response against the said show cause cum demand notice. The Company has voluntarily deposited ¥ 200
Lakhs under protest with th2 authority in this matter. Subsequently, the company has received OlO from
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company intends to take agpropriate legal action in response. Accordingly, the Company has disclosed
the said amount as a contingent liability as at March 31, 2025.

(2) The Company has received an Order in original of ¥ 3,239.53 Lakhs (previous year: ¥ 3,239.53 Lakhs)
and penalty of Rs. 323.95 Lakhs from the Joint Commissioner, CGST & CX Central Excise Thane pertaining
to the period July 2017 to FY 2021-22. The Joint Commissioner has disputed that the Company has failed
to discharge its GST liabilitv on coinsurance premium received as a follower and commission earned on
the reinsurance premium ceded to foreign reinsurer companies. Based on the information /
documentation available with the Company, GST liability is already discharged by Lead insurer in the case
of Coinsurance premium ard in the case of Reinsurance commission there is no separate supply, the
amount of Reinsurance commission received by the Company from Reinsurance companies is merely a
mechanism adopted by the Company and Reinsurer company to arrive at the value of reinsurance service
provided by the Reinsurer. It is not towards any distinct and separate supply made by the Company.
Rather, the reinsurance commission is in the nature of ‘discount’ only. The Company has filed writ
application against the Order. The Finance bill has prospectively declared that premium received on
Coinsurance and Reinsurance Commission will not be declared as supply of service. Circular 244/01/2025
- Regularizes payment of GST for past periods on co-insurance premium and Rl Commission. Accordingly,
the Company has disclosed the said amount as a contingent liability as at March 31, 2025.

(3) The company has received show cause-cum-demand notice from the Directorate General of GST
Intelligence, Mumbai, alleging non-payment of applicable GST on insurance services supplied to SEZ units
amounting to ¥23.07 Lakhs. The company intends to take appropriate legal action in response.
Accordingly, the Company has disclosed the said amount as a contingent liability as at March 31, 2025.

(4) The Company has received an Order under Section 143(3) (read with section 147, where applicable)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 (“the Act”) for AY 2020-21, AY 2021-22, AY 2022-23 and AY 2023-24 from the
Office of the Assistant Commissioner of Income-Tax, Central Circle 5(3), Mumbai, raising a tax demand
of ¥ 2.86 Lakhs.

5.1.2, Encumbrances on Assets

The assets of the Company are free from all encumbrances except to the extent assets or monies are
required to be deposited as margin contributions for investment trade obligations of the Company.

{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Pledged under tri-Party Repo

(TREPS) / CBLO segment

Government Securities 1,000.00 1,000.00

Cash 2.00 2.00

5.1.3. Commitments

Estimated amount of commitment pertaining to contracts remaining to be executed in respect of fixed
assets (net of advances) 's ¥ 953.00 lakhs {Previous year: ¥ 843.50 lakhs).

Commitment in respect of loans is ¥ NIL (Previous year: ¥ NIL) and investments is ¥ 2,120.00 lakhs
(Previous year: ¥ NIL).
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5.1.4. Claims

Claims, less reinsurance paid to claimants in/outside India are as under:
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024

Inside India 39,626.43 24,603.87

Qutside India - | -

Ageing of gross claims outstanding is set out in the table below:
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)
For the year ended
March 31, 2024
7,939.78
41,171.49

For the year ended
March 31, 2025

12,123.16

54,358.75

Particulars

More than six months
Others

Claims settled and remaining unpaid for more than six months is ¥ 4.14 lakhs (Previous year: ¥ 4.38
lakhs).

As per the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India (Actuarial, Finance and Investment
Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (‘the Regulations’) and Master circular dated May 17, 2024,
the claims made in respect of contracts where claims payment period exceeds four years, are required
to be recognized on actuarial basis. Accordingly, the Appointed Actuary has certified the fairness of
the liability assessment, assuming ‘NIL’ discount rate.

There are no claims which are due for more than four years.

5.1.5. Premium
(A) All premiums net of Re-insurance are written and received in India.

(B) No premium income is recognized on varying risk pattern.

5.1.6. Sector wise details based on GDPI| and No. of policies issued

Business For the year ended For the year ended
Sector March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
GDPI (X Lakhs) % of GDPI GDPI (X Lakhs) % of GDPI
Rural 62.45 0.06 9,160.41 10.99
Social 267.67 0.27 240.03 0.29
Urban 98,899.65 99.67 73,979.39 38.72
| Total 99,229.77 100.00 83,379.83 100.00
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Business For the year ended For the year ended
Sector March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
No. of % of No. of No. of % of No. of
Policies Policy Lives Policies Policy Lives
Rural 636 0.11 - 102,439 23.82 -
Social 3 0.00 286,104 8 0.00 179,499
Urban 594,472 99.89 - 327,679 76.18 -
Total 595,111 100.00 | 286,104 | 430,126 100.00 | 179,499

5.1.7. Extent of risks retained and reinsured

Extent of risk retained and reinsured (%) with respect to gross written premium is set out below

(excluding excess of loss and catastrophe reinsurance)

Particulars Basis For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Retention | Ceded | Retention | Ceded
Fire ValJue at risk 28% 72% 31% 69%
Marine Cargo Valae at risk 55% 45% 47% 53%
Motor OD Valuae at risk 56% 44% 56% 44%
Motor TP Valde at risk 56% 44% 46% 54%
Liabitity Val.e at risk 93% 7% 96% 4%
Engineering Value at risk 23% 77% 20% 80%
Personal Accident | Value at risk 96% 4% 69% 31%
Health Val.ue at risk 78% 22% 79% 21%
Travel Valye at risk 96% 4% 96% 4%
Miscellaneous Valae at risk 13% 87% 15% 85%

5.1.8. Investments

Contracts outstanding in relation to purchases where deliveries are pending is ¥ NIL (Previous year:
NIL) and contracts outstanding in relation to sales/redemption where receipts are outstanding/overdue
at the end of the year is ¥ NIL (Previous year: ¥ 205.57 lakhs).

Historical cost of investments that are valued on fair value basis is ¥ 17,656.86 lakhs (Previous year: £
17,355.61 lakhs).

All investments are made in accordance with Insurance Act, 1938, and the Insurance Regulatory and
Development Authority of India (Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations,
2024 (‘the Regulations’) and Master circular dated May 17, 2024, and are performing investments.
Allocation of Investment Income

Investment income is directly allocated on actuals to revenue account(s) and profit and loss account

as applicable. Further, investment income across segments within the revenue account(s) has also
been allocated on the basis of segment-wise policyholders funds.
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Provision for diminution in Value of Investments

The Tenure of Security receipt - EARC 238 expired during the year based on which the Trust has
provided zero NAV as per the RBI regulation. Considering the potential recovery from the remaining
asset, Trust has decided to extend the tenure for an additional three years, hence the Company has
created a temporary pravision for diminution in value of investment amounting to Rs.180.66 lakhs as
of March 31, 2025.

5.1.9. Employee benefit plans

(a) Defined contribution plan
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs

Expenses on defined contribution plan For the year ended | For the year ended
March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Contribution to staff provident fund 382.04 352.84

{b) Defined benefit plan
Gratuity -

The Company has a defined gratuity benefit plan payable to every employee on separation from
employment.

Reconciliation of opening and closing balance of the present value of the defined benefit obligation
for gratuity benefits of the Company is given below.

(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Reconciliation of benefit obligations and planned
assets for the period

i Present value of the defined benefit obligations at year 449.02 338.47
end
Fair value of plan assets at year end - -
Net Liability/(Asset) recognized in Balance Sheet at 449,02 338.47

end of the year

Net employee benefit expenses (recognized in
employee cost) _
Current service cost 92.24 83.20
Interest on defined benefit obligation 23.69 19.83
Expected return on plan assets - -
Past service cost - -
Actuarial (gain) or losses 29.27 16.13
Total net cost recognized as employee remuneration 145.20 119.16
in Revenue/ Profit and loss account
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{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Changes in the defined benefit obligation For the year For the year

ended March ended March

31, 2025 31, 2024

Defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the year 338.47 279.25
Interest cost 23.69 19.83
Current Service Cost 92.24 83.20
Past Service Cost - -
Liability assumed on Transfer of employees in / (Out) - -
Benefits paid (34.65) (59.94)
Actuarial (gain)/loss 29.27 16.13
Present value of the defined benefit obligations at the 449.02 338.47
end of the year

(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Change in Plan Asset

For the year

For the year

ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Opening Plan assets . .
Contributions during the year 34.65 59.94
Benefits Paid (34.65)

(59.94)

Expected Return on Plan Assets

Actuarial (Loss)/Gain

Fair Value of Plan assets at the end of the year

Principal actuarial assumptions For the year | For the year
ended March | ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024

Salary escalation (% p.a.) 7.00% 7.00%
Discount rate (% p.a.) 6.30% 7.00%
Interest Rate (% p.a.) 7.00% 7.10%
Employee attrition rate (% p.a.) 16% 16%
Expected Return on Plan Assets - -
Mortality Rate IALM 2012-14 | |ALM 2012-14
(ULt.) (ULt.)

Expected average remaining working lives of employees 3.5 years 3.5 years

{Amounts in T Lakhs)

Experience Adjustments For the year For the year
ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Defined Benefit Obligation 449.02 338.47
Fair Value of Plan Assets 5 i
Surplus/ (Deficit) (449.02) (338.47)
Experience Adjustmen= on Plan Liabilities: (Gain)/ Loss 11.50 .
Experience Adjustmen=r®lan Assets: Gain/ (Loss) :ﬁi Ju{;ﬁ.\‘ -
G AN -
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(c) Compensated Absence

{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars For the year For the year
ended March ended March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Opening Balance 98.35 83.41
Add /({Less): Provision made during the year 20.00 14.94
Closing Balance 118.35 98.35

(d) Long Term Incentive Plan

The Company has introduced a scheme for Long Term Incentive Plans from year 2020-21. The plans
are discretionary deferred compensation plans with a vesting period of 3 years. Liability for the
schemes are determined based on actuarial valuation which has been carried out using the Projected

Unit Credit Method.

(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

. Particulars

For the year
ended March

For the year
ended March

May 2025 and
ii. 6.4% p.a. for

31, 2025 31, 2024
Opening Balance 1,024.92 967.73
Less: Amount paid during the year (639.00) (384.35)
Add /(Less): Provision made during the year 350.56 441.54
Closing Balance 736.48 1,024.92
Assumptions
- Discount Rate i. 6.9% p.a. for i. 6.9% p.a. for

May 2024 and
ii. 6.9% p.a. for

May 2026 May 2025

iii. 6.4% p.a. for | iii. 6.9% p.a. for

May 2027 May 2026

- Withdrawal Rate 16% p.a. 16% p.a.
- Mortality IALM 2012-14 IALM 2012-14
~ (Ult.) (Ult.)

5.1.10. Managerial Remuneration

As per IRDAI guidelines no. IRDAI/F&A/GDL/MISC/141/6/2023 dated June 30, 2023 on Remuneration
of Directors and Key Managerial Persons of Insurers along with Annexure A & B, in which in Annexure

B, the following disclosures are mandated by the Authority.

(i) Qualitative Disclosures:

{a} Information relating to the composition and mandate of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC):

Composition: Pursuant to the requirements of Companies Act 2013, rule made thereunder and
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and Remuneration Committee (‘NRC’). NRC is comprising of Four members out of which two are
Non-Executive & two Independent Directors. The composition of NRC is as below.

1. Mr. H.S. Upendra Kamath - Chairman (Independent Director)
2. Ms. Sudha Bhamidipati - (Independent Director)

3. Mr. Rashesh Shal - (Non-Executive Director)

4. Mr. Rujan Panjwani - (Non-Executive Director)

Mandate:

1.

Uk W

10.

11.

To scrutinize the declarations and details of intending applicants submitted before the
appointment/ reappointment/election of Directors by the shareholders at the general meetings;

. To scrutinize the applications and details submitted by aspirants for appointments as Key

Management Persons;

To identify the persons who are qualified to become Directors, etc.;

To ensure ‘fit and proper’ status and credentials of proposed/existing Directors, etc.;

To formulate the criteria for determining the qualifications, positive attributes and independence
of Directors;

To recommend to the Board a policy relating to the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial
Persons, etc. for the approval of the Board;

To determine and rezcommend to the Board the remuneration package and compensation for the
Chief Executive Officer and the Managing Directors of the Company;

To determine on behalf of the Board and on behalf of the shareholders with agreed terms of
reference, the Company’s policy on remuneration packages and any compensation payment, to the
CEOQ, the Managing D rectors, and the Key Management Persons of the Company.

. To ensure that the remuneration packages of the Key Management Persons of the Company are

aligned appropriately with their laid down performance objectives and are as per the Remuneration
Policy approved by the Board.

To ensure that the proposed appointments / re-appointments of Key Management Persons or
Directors are in conformity with the Board approved policy on retirement/ superannuation and is
in accordance with the applicable law / regulations;

Ensure Compliance to stipulations prescribed under Guidelines / Regulation / Circular for issued
by IRDAI on this subject and as may be amended from time to time; and

12. The Committee shall report to the Board and perform such other functions as may be prescribed

(b)

(c)
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by the Board from time to time.

Information relating to the design and structure of remuneration processes and key features and
objectives of the Remuneration Policy:

The Remuneration Policy provides that the level and composition of remuneration is in line with
other companies in the industry, sufficient to attract and retain right talent at all levels and keep
them motivated enough to meet the organizational objectives and a reasonable balance is
maintained in the composition of remuneration (fixed and variable component). The performance
measurement parameters are in place to assess the overall performance of Directors, KMPs and
other Employees. The NRC, whilst approving remuneration of the Managing Director, considers
the above factors, which is subject to approval of IRDAI.

Description of the ways in which current and future risks are taken into account in the
remuneration processes:
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The remuneration fixing process of Managing Director and CEO, includes evaluation of performance
against performance objectives defined by NRC which includes performance criteria on

governance.

(d) Description of the ways in which the Company seeks to link performance during a performance
measurement perioc with levels of remuneration:
The level of remuneration of Managing Director and CEQ for any financial year is inter alia based
on the deliverables approved by the Board at the beginning of each financial year based on the
recommendations of the NRC. The deliverables include targets to be achieved in the performance
year such as topline, bottom-line financial targets and other minimum criteria as defined under
the Remuneration Guidelines 2023 prescribed by the Regulator.

(ii) Quantitative Disclosure:

(a) Complete details of remuneration awarded for the financial year 2024-25 to MD/CEQ/WTD.

Annexure |
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)
Sr. | Name of the | Desig Fixed Pay Variable Pay
No. | MD/CEO/WT | natio
D n
Pay and | Perquisi | Total Cash Non-cash Total (f) = (d) +
Allowan | tes etc. | (c) = (a) | components (d) | components (e)
ces (a) (b) + (b) (e)
Paid | Deferr | Settl | Defe | Paid/ | Deferre
ed ed rred | Settle d
d
Shubhdarshin | MD &
1 | i Ghosh CEO 237.43 6.23 243.66 | 325.00 - - - | 325.00 -
Total of Fixed and Amount Amount Value of Retirement Amount of
Variable pay (c}+(f) debited to debited to Joining / Sign benefits like deferred
Revenue Afc | Profit & Loss on Bonus gratuity, pension, | remuneration of
Afc etc, paid during | earlier years paid
the year f settled during
the year
568.66 400.00 168.66 . -

(b) Details of outstanding deferred remuneration of MD/CEQ/WTD at the end of the financial year

2024-25:
Annexure |l
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)
Sr. Name of the Designation | Remuneration Nature of Amount
No. MD/CEQ/WTD pertains to remuneration Outstanding
Financial outstanding
Year
1 | Shubhdarshini Ghosh#” 2021-22 ,..cja;;z%\'\l'erm Incentive 105.00

Notes to Accounts 18 of 35




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General
Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

(iii) Remuneration paid to Non-Executive/Independent Director
(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Name of director Designation Amount | Details of change in the year
Paid
Mr. Rashesh Shah Chairman, Non-Executive
; Director
Mr. Hosdurg Sundar Independent Director 12
Upendra Kamath
Mr. Rujan Panjwani Non-Executive Director 32
Mr. Sandeep Bhandarkar independent Director 13
Ms. Sudha Bhamidipati Independent Director 8
Ms. Priyadeep Chopra Non-Executive Director -
Mr. Sumit Rai Non-Executive Director - | Regularized as a Director on 09
| August 2024
Total 65

5.1.11. The additional disclosure on expenses related to outsourcing activities pursuant to the IRDAI
Circular IRDAIJACTL/CIR/MISC/80/05/2024 dated May 17 ,2024
{Amounts in X Lakhs)

Particulars For the year ended | For the year ended
] March 31, 2025 March 31, 2024
Outsourcing expenses 1,090.23 80.02
Business Development 52.53 -
Marketing support 1,716.18 4,137.97
5.1.12. Penal actions levied by various Govt. authorities
[V I (Amounts in X Lakhs)

Sr. Authority Non- Penalty Penalty Penalty

No. Compliance/ Awarded Paid Waived/

L Violation Reduced

1 Insurance Regulatory and - - - -
Development Authority i{-) (-} (-) {-)

2 GST Tax Authorities - 1,497.42 - -

| ()| (323.95) (-) ()

3 Income Tax Authaorities . e J g

) () () (-)

4 Any other Tax Authorities g 0 g -

{-) ) ) {-)

5 Enforcement Directorate/ - - . -
Adjudicating Authority/ Tribunal or {-) (-} (-) {-)
any Authority under FEMA

6 Registrar of Companies/ NCLT/CLB/ - - - -
Department of Corporate Affairs or {-) (-} (-) (-)
any Authority under Companies Act,

2013 _

7 | Penalty awardec by any Court/ 1.05 .05 0.5 0.55
Tribural for any matter including (-) (-) (-} {-)
claim settlement but excluding
compensation

8 Securities and Exchange Board of -

India (-)

Notes to Accounts 19 of 35




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General
Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial

statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

9 [ Competition Commission of India

10 | Any other Central/State/Local Govt /

() (-}

()

(-)

(1.16;

(1.16-)

(1.16-)

Statutory Authority (Tariff Advisory ()
Committee) ]
Figure in brackets pertain to year ended March 31, 2024
5.1.13. Summary of the financial statements:
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars FY 2024-25 FY 2023-24 FY 2022-23 FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
Qperating Result
Gross Direct Premium 99,229.77 83,370.83 53,350.77 34,888.37 21,857.40
Gross Written Premium 101,219.06 85,097.01 55,173.90 36,101.86 22,644.60
Net Premium Income ) 61,956.15 52,464.58 36,986.25 24,920.33 18,422.42
Income from investments (net) {2 10,496.72 6,512.62 2,702.87 2,041.98 2,238.16
Other income (Misc Income) 137.35 238.24 187.31 93.41 29.23
Contribution from Shareholder's A/c
- Towards Excess EOM 8,721.14 12,076.80 - = -
- Towards Remnuneration of 168.66 75.21 - -
MD/CEOQ/WTD/ Other KMP's
Total Income 81,440.02 71,367.45 39,876.43 27,055.72 20,689.81
Commissions (net) & 9,523.35 5,774.88 194.50 408.87 1,225.28
Operating expenses 18,564.77 22,127.14 21,343.64 14,265.66 10,954.56
Net Incurred Claims 46,469.60 33,407.04 25,238.98 22,508.14 16,576.14
Change in Unexpired Risk Reserve” 3,706.53 12,042.08 6,287.10 1,263.53 2,159,27
Operating Profit/ (Loss) 3,175.77 {1,983.68) {13,187.79) (11,390.48) (10,225.44)
Non - Operating Result _
Total income under shareholder's (7,929.15) (10,484.84) 1,218.44 481.87 563.48
account (net of expenses)
Profit/(Loss) before tax {4,753.38) (12,468.53) (11,969.35) (10,908.61) (9,661.96)
Provision for tax - - - - -
Profit/ (Loss) after tax (4,753.38) (12,468.53) (11,969.35) {10,908.61) (9,661.96)
Miscellaneous
Policy holder's account:

Total funds 103,143.39 83,542.50 51,047.29 31,553.53 23,174.89

Total investments 119,684,42 98,681.79 55,970.73 34,754.28 27,108.48

Yield on investments 8.74% 6.60% 4,83% 5.88% 8.26%
Shareholder's account:

Total funds 30,590.12 23,743.50 16,912.03 12,381.38 11,289.99

Total investments 12,729.55 11,235.29 9,139.90 9,609.20 8,928.30

Yield on investments 9.53% 15.09% 15.29% 6.93% -1.65%
Paid up equity capital 98,700.00 87,100.00 67,800.00 51,300.00 39,300.00
Net worth 30,590.30 23,743.50 16,912.03 12,381.38 11,289.99
Total assets 214,111.94 165,927.74 96,369.45 60,623.06 44,354.64
Yield on total investments 9.63% 9.38% 7.49% 6.74% 6.30%
{annualized)
Earnings per share (%} (0.51) (1.63) (2.00) (2.41) {2.87)
Baok value per share (%) 3.10 2.73 2.49 2.41 2.87
Total dividend (exclud:ng dividend - - - - -
tax)
Dividend per share (%) - - - s -
Solvency Ratio 1.58 1.72 1.80 1.67 2.09

1.Net of Reinsurance
2.Net of losses (include diminution in the value of investments)
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5.1.14. Ratio analysis

(a)For ratios at March 31, 2025 refer Annexure 1A and 1B and for March 31, 2024 refer Annexure 2A & 2B.

(b)Solvency margin

{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs}

Solvency Margin At March At March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Required solvency margin under IRDAI Regulations (A) 28,149.00 13,119.00
Available solvency margin (B) 17,805.00 22,611.00
Solvency ratio actual (times} (B/A) 1.58 1.72
Solvency ratio prescribed by Regutation 1.50 1.50

5.2.

5.2.1.

5.2.2

5.2.3.

Notes to Accounts 21 of 35

Other disclosures
Basis used by the Actuary for determining provision required for IBNR / IBNER / PDR

Incurred But Not Reported (IBNR) reserve is a provision for all claims that have occurred prior to
the end of the current accounting period but have not been reported to the Company. The IBNR
reserve also includes provision for claims Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER). The said
liability is determined by Appointed Actuary based on actuarial principles. The actuarial estimate
is derived in accordance with relevant IRDAI regulations and Actuarial Practice Standards (APS)
issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India. The Appointed Actuary has certified that the
methodology and assumptions used to estimate the liability are appropriate and in accordance
with guidelines and norms issued by the Institute of Actuaries of India in concurrence with the
IRDAI regulations.

The Premium Deficiency Reserve (PDR) is calculated using sound actuarial principles on a
segmental basis as mentioned in the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of India
(Actuarial, Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024. The provision for the
same is made at the Company level and duly certified by the Appointed Actuary of the Company.

The peer review of statutory actuarial valuation as at March 31, 2025 has been carried out by an
independent actuary, in pursuant with Actuarial Practice Standard (APS) 33 issued by Institute of
Actuaries of India (lAl) which is mandatory and effective from December 1, 2017.

Provision for free look period

The provision for free look period ¥ 1.33 lakh (previous year: T 0.05 lakh) is duly certified by the
appointed Actuary.

Leases

The Company’s sigrificant leasing arrangements include agreements for office and residential
premises. Lease rentals for assets taken on operating lease are recognized as expense in the
Revenue Account(s) over the lease term on straight line basis.

In respect of premises taken on operating lease, the lease arrangements are generalty mutually
renewable/cancela lessor/lessee.
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5.2.4.

5.2.5.

5.2.6.

5.2.7.

Non-Cancelable/Cancelable with lock-in-period Operating lease
The detail of future rentals payable in respect of cancelable lease where there is lock-in-period
are given below:

{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars At March 31,2025 | At March 31,2024
a. Not later than one year 83.84 18.90
b. Later than one year and not later than 106.00 9.92
five years
c. Later than five years

An amount of X 44.24 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 20.05 lakhs) towards said lease payments has been
recognized in the statement of revenue account.

Contribution to Terrorism Pool

The Company in accordance with the requirements of IRDAI has participated in contributing to the
Terrorism Pool. This pool is managed by the General Insurance Corporation of India (‘GIC’).
Amounts collected as terrorism premium are ceded at 100% of the terrorism premium collected
to the Terrorism Pool, subject to conditions and an overall limit of ¥ 20 billion.

In accordance with the terms of the agreement, GIC retrocedes, to the Company, terrorism
premium to the extent of the Company’s share in the risk, which is recorded as reinsurance
accepted. Such reinsurance accepted is recorded based on intimation/confirmation received from
GIC. Accordingly, reinsurance accepted, on account of the terrorism pool has been recorded only
up to December 31, 2024 (previous year: December 31, 2023) as per the last confirmation
received.

Contribution to Solatium Fund

In accordance with the requirements of the IRDAI circular dated March 18, 2003 and based on
recommendations made at General Insurance Council meeting held on February 4, 2005, and as
per letter no. HO/MTD/Solatium Fund/2010/482 dated July 26, 2010 from The New India
Assurance Co. Ltd. (Scheme administrator), the Company has provided 0.1% of the total Motor TP
premium of the Company towards Solatium Fund.

Micro and Small-scale business entities

There is no Micro, Small and Medium enterprise to which the Company owes dues which are
outstanding for more than 45 days as at March 31, 2025. This information, as required to be
disclosed under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act 2006, has been determined
to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company.

Segmental reporting

Primary reportable segments

The Company’s primary reportable segments are business segments, which have been identified
in accordance with AS 17 Segment Reporting read with the Regulatlons The income and expenses
attributable to the
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Segmental Assets & Liabilities to the extent identifiable to business segment:
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Current Assets Current Liabilities & Provisions
Segment Year Outstanding |Advance Claims Reserve for | Reserve for
Premium Premium |Qutstanding | Unexpired | Premium
Risk Deficiency
Fire FY 2024-25 - 264.66 8,220.53 1,298.82 -
Y 2023-24 - - 7,087.43 1,032.61 -
Marine Cargo FY 2024-25 - - 735.52 0.86 -
FY 2023-24 - - 703.13 16.36 -
Marine Hutl FY 2024-25 . : g - -
FY 2023-24 . . - -
Motor OD FY 2024-25 - 169.44 4,204.04 8,776.20
FY 2023-24 - 137.95 3,300.62 6,538.45
Motor TP FY 2024-25 - 1 8,049.56 42,552.23 8,188.50
FY 2023-24 - 15,421.20 28,793.83 4,833.73
Workmen’s Compensation] FY 2024-25 - - 10.11 1.52 -
FY 2023-24 - - 9.32 3.43 -
Public/Product Liability | FY 2024-25 - - 13.79 3.46 -
FY 2023-24 - - 9.94 - -
| Engineering FY 2024-25 - 2.04 1,235.41 52.22 g
FY 2023-24 - - 770.76 38.33 -
Aviation FY 2024-25 - - - - -
FY 2023-24 - - - - -
Personal Accident FY 2024-25 - 0.64 837.84 769.29 -
FY 2023-24 - : 1,150.90 867.60 -
Health FY 2024-25 - B47.55 7,657.57 | 14,649.85
FY 2023-24 = 7.63 6,293.49 15,762.72
Travel FY 2024-25 - 95.51 661.72 500.66
FY 2023-24 - - 788.94 1,448.33
Credit Insurance FY 2024-25 . . - -
FY 2023-24 . . - -
Crop Insurance FY 2024-25 : . g .
FY 2023-24 - . - -
Others (Misc) Insurance | FY 2024-25 - - 353.15 22.80
FY 2023-24 - - 202.91 23.17
Total Amount FY 2024-25 - 19,429.41 | 66,481.91 | 34,269.18
FY 2023-24 - |5,566,78 | 49,111.27 | 30,564.73

Secondary reportable segments

There are no reportable geographical segments since the Company provides services only to
customers in the Indian market or Indian interests abroad and does not distinguish any reportable
regions within India.

Notes to Accounts 23 of 35
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5.2.8. Related parties

Name of Related party by whom control is exercised
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited (Holding Company)

Fellow Subsidiaries witn whom transactions have taken place:

Ecap Equities Limited {Formerly known as Edel Land Limited)

ECL Finance Limited

Edel Finance Company Limited

Edel Investments Limited

Edelcap Securities Limited

Edelgive Foundation

EAAA Pte. Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Alternate Asset Advisors PTE Limited)
Edelweiss Asset Management Limited

Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Limited

Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited

Edelweiss Global Wealth Management Limited

Edelweiss International (Singapore) Pte. Ltd.

Edelweiss Investment Adviser Limited

Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Limited

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited

Edelweiss Rural & Corpcrate Services Limited

Edelweiss Securities anc Investments Private Limited

Edelweiss Life Insurance Company Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance
Company Limited)

Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Limited

Nido Home Finance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Housing Finance Limited)

Nuvama Custodial Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Capital Services)

Sekura India Management Limited

Allium Corporate Service Private Limited (formerly known as Allium Finance Private Limited)
Comtrade Commodities Services Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Comtrade Limited)
Ecap Securities and Investments Limited

EAAA India Alternatives Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss Alternate Asset Advisors Limited)
EC Commodity Limited

Key Management Personnel
Shubhdarshini Ghosh: Executive Director and CEQ - Designate (w.e.f. May 10th, 2019)
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Transactions and balances with related parties for the year ended March 31, 2025

{Amounts in X Lakhs)

Sl. Name of the Related Party Nature of Description of FY 2024- | FY 2023-
No Relations Transactions / 2025 2024
. hip Categories
1 | Edelweiss Financial Services Holding .
Limited Company | ¢aPital Introduced 11,600.00 |  6,400.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding .
Limited Company AGURIULES 11.17 (0.76)
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding
Limited Company 125 CGHSULAE 274.17 68.91
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding Establishment & Other
Limited Company | expenses 1.74
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding ESOP Compensation
Limited Company | Cost 22.14 (154.23)
. L A . Proceeds from
EFIe!welss Financial Services Holding Redemption of 46.17
Limited Company <
Securities
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding CD Balance
Limited Company | Payable/(Receivable) 10.59 (32.91)
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding Trade
Limited Company | Payable/(Receivable) 9.41 7.50
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding Investment in NCD
Limited Company 2,880.80 | 2,916.34
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding Interest Accrued but
Limited Company | not due 80.71 85.12
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding Paid up Capital
Limited Company pLap 98,700.00 | 87,100.00
Edelweiss Financial Services Holding . .
Limited Company Collection of Premium 17.23
2 . - Fellow . :
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary Collection of Premium 1,799.44 (21.71)
. . . Fellow .
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary Premium Income 503.90 323.29
. . .. Fellow
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary Interest Income 241.93 32.41
. . . Fellow Commission and
alleileu Sl SR Subsidiary | Brokerage paid 831.92 150.08
Nido Home Finance Limited L Purchase of Securities
Subsidiary 1,200.00 700.00
. . - Fellow -
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary Claims Payment 37.03
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Sshdiary

Nido Home Finance _imited oy ALl
- Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (297.04) {4.73)
. . P Fellow Trade
MDA LE IR Subsidiary | Payable/ (Receivable) 402.02 :
Nido Home Finance Limited ol Investment in NCD
Subsidiary 3,025.00 1,825.00
. . . Fetlow Interest Accrued but
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary | not due 97.93 59.38
. . L Fellow Premium Received in
Nido Home Finance Limited Subsidiary | Advance 299.14 i
3 | Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow .
Services Limited Subsidiary | Premium Income 220.75 1.38
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow
Services Limited Subsidiary | INSUrance expenses 155.40 (3.53)
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow Business Support
Services Limited Subsidiary | Services 74.46 19.95
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow Establishment & Other
Services Limited Subsidiary | expenses 562.63 136.52
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow CD Balance
Services Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 103.76 10.15
Edelweiss Rural & Corporate Fellow Trade
Services Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 54.31 126.01
4 . - Fellow . i
ECL Finance Limited Subsidiary Collection of Premium 126.09 (13.46)
. . Fellow .
ECL Finance Limited Subsidiary Premium Income 102.25 (74.31)
) - Fellow Commission and
S Subsidiary | Brokerage paid 8.09 -
. - Fellow CD Batance
ECL Finance Limited Subsidiary | Payable/ (Receivable) 43.64 | (14.46)
. . Fellow Trade
ECL Finance Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.65 (0.44)
. - Fellow Premium Received in
ECL Finance Limited Subsidiary | Advance 12.06 i
5 . — - Fellow X .
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Subsidiary Collection of Premium 3.53 (0.81)
. - .. Fellow .
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited Subsidiary Premium Income 26.93 (2.02)
. - . Fellow CD Balance
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited | ¢ cidiary | Payable/ (Receivable) 4.15)]  (11.32)
cdetweiss Life Insurance Company | Fellow
‘i@!}\, (formerly krown as Insurance expen//,er;i & (-_,0:“_' 20.18 23.07
&Y

@\\
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Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance
Company Limited)
Edelweiss Life Insurance Compainy
Limited {formerly known as Fellow . 676.02
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Subsidiary Al uts {250.60)
Company Limited)
Edelweiss Life Insurance Company
Limited (formerly known as Fellow CD Balance 55.52
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.29
Company Limited) o,
Edelweiss Life Insurance Company
Limited (fermerly known as Fellow Trade (4.04)
Edelweiss Tokio Life Insurance Subsidiary | Payable/{Receivable) -
Company Limited)
7 | Edelweiss Asset Management Fellow .
Limited Subsidiary | Fremium Income 117.88 2.61
Edelweiss Asset Management Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (12.24) 44.70
8 N Fellow . =
Ecap Equities Limited Subsidiary Premium Income (18.18)
. . Fellow . .
Ecap Equities Limited Subsidiary Security Deposit 252 06 252.06
e e Fellow Establishment & Other
ARSI Subsidiary | expenses 320.88 74.87
Y SR Fellow CD Balance
SLIAD USRI Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 1.12 8.77
Wy Fellow Trade
Ecap Equ:tl_es F1m1ted Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 31.22 (0.63)
9 | Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow Premium Income
Limited Subsidiary 68.48 9.40
. . Proceeds from
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow .
Limited Subsidiary | ocacibuion of 31081 | 49,97
ecurities -
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (91.69) 12.21
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow Investment in Security -
Limited Subsidiary | Receipt - SC 357 116.12
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow Investment in Security -
Limited Subsidiary | Receipt- SC 351 0.20
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Fellow Investment in Security
Limited Subsidiary | Receipt- SC 238 120.17 180.66
10 | Edelweiss Investment Advisor Fellow .
" Subsidiary Premium Income
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Edelweiss Investment Advisor Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (0.15) 0.04
11
Edel Finance Company Limited g:llal:i\giary Premium Income 1.16 (0.18)
12 . =0 Fellow CD Balance
edel Finance Company Limited | g psigiary | Payable/(Receivable) 025  (0.16)
13 I Fellow CD Balance
EC Commodity Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.20
14 | EAAA India Alternatives Limited Fellow
(formerly known as Edelweiss . Premium Income
Alternate Asset Advisors Limited) e 149.15 el
EAAA India Alternatives Limited
i Fellow CD Balance
(formerly known as Edelweiss < .
Alternate Asset Advisors Limited) Subsidiary | Payable/{Receivable) (24.09) 19.55
15 Ed . Fellow .
el Investments Limited Subsidiary Premium Income 2597 (1.12)
. Fellow CD Balance
Edel Investments Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (12.79) (0.31)
16 | [
Edelgive Foundation gsll)l;:lviary Premium Income 9.59 (0.53)
. . Fellow CD Balance
Edelgive Foundation Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (5.89) 1.20
17 | Comtrade Commodities Services Fellow
Limited (formerly known as Subsidiar Premium Income 0.40 (0.90)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited) y )
Comtrade Commodities Services
. Fellow CD Balance
Limited (formerly known as e . (0.00)
Edelweiss Comtrade Limited) Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) {0.10)
18
Edelcap Securities Limited gsll)ls?i‘éiviary Premium Income 58.93 (0.38)
e e Fellow CD Balance
2SS R Subsidiary | Payable/ (Receivable) (3.70) 17.01
19 | Allium Corporate Service Private Fellow
Limited {formerly known as Allium subsidia Premium Income 1.84
Finance Private Limited) i
Allium Corporate Service Private
- . Fellow CD Balance
Limited (formerly known as Allium Lo . (2.39)
Finance Private Limited) Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.22
20 . ) . Managerial
Director & Cro o Managing | e Remuneration & Other | soq 66 67.46
Perquisites ) )
Shubhdarshini Ghosh - Managing .
Director & CEO KMP Al 1.12 .
iss International ____ Fellow .
/\;j“f-rs-'rﬁ’g@& re) Pte. Ltd. ZCUNa | Subsidiary | Fremium Income__— .08 i
] (s o 1ol & e
g 2L w05 = *
':‘;"-. C:p /'('_?a.’.:' : ) E
s/ NS
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Edelweiss International Fellow CD Balance
(Singapore) Pte. Ltd Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (0.80) (0.07)
22 | Edelweiss Trusteeship Company Fellow :
Limited Subsidiary | remium Income 0.37 0.29
Edetweiss Trusteeship Company Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.50 (0.15)
23 | Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Fellow .
Limited Subsidiary | Premium Income 0.21 (2.12)
Edelweiss Real Assets Managers Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (1.22) 1.22
24 | Edelweiss Securities and Fellow ‘
Investments Private Limited Subsidiary AU 3.12 0.08
Edelweiss Securities and Fellow CD Balance
Investments Private Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable} 0.32 1.70
25 . .. Fellow .
Sekura India Management Limited Subsidiary Premium Income 37.03 5.75
. . Fellow CD Balance
Sekura India Management Limited | ¢ oy | Payables (Receivable) (6.00) 14.63
26 | EAAA Pte. Limited (formerly Fellow
known as Edelweiss Alternate Subsidia Premium Income 0.03 i
Asset Advisors PTE Limited) ry
EAAA Pte. Limited (formerly
. Fellow CD Balance
known as Edelweiss Alternate L : (0.59)
Asset Advisors PTE Limited) Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.59
27 | Edelweiss Global Wealth Fellow Premium Income
Management Subsidiary Y 3.83 0.63
Edelweiss Global Wealth Fellow CD Balance
Management Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 2.24 0.18
28 . ] - Fellow . B
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited Substdiary Premium Income (15.27)
. . . Fellow CD Balance
Nuvama Custodial Services Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) (0.07) i
29 . ) . Fellow CD Balance
Edelweiss Finvest Private Limited Subsidiary | Payable/ (Receivable) (0.09) ]
30 | Ecap Securities and Investments Fellow .
Limited Subsidiary AUt 23.14 19.12
Ecap Securities and lavestments Fellow CD Balance
Limited Subsidiary | Payable/(Receivable) 0.75 0.22
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5.2.9. Unclaimed Amount of Policy Holders
As per new circular issued by IRDAIl vide circular no. IRDAI/Life/CIR/Misc/41/2/2024 dated
February 16, 2024, the liability of the Company towards the policyholders, pertaining to amounts
lying unclaimed, stands at ¥ 13.06 lakhs (Previous Year: 13.01 lakhs) as on the date of the balance
sheet, duly reported under Schedule 13, the details of which, along with an itemized ageing, is
given in the table below.

Statement showing the Age-wise Analysis of the Unclaimed Amount of the Policyholders as at March
31, 2025
(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Particulars Total AGE-WISE ANALYSIS (in Months)
Amount 0-6 7-12 | 13-18 | 19-24 | 25-30 | 31-36 37- | More
120 | than
120

Claims settled but not paid to - - - - - . . . R
the policyholders/beneficiaries {-) (-) () ) () (-) (-) {-) ()
due to any reasons

Sum due to the policyholders/ - s . - - - - - -

beneficiaries on maturity cr {-) {-) ) ) ) {-) () ) {-)
otherwise
Any excess collection of the 2.28 0.73 | 0.53 0.01 0.03 0.33 0.49 0.15

premium/tax or any other (1.11) | (0.01) | (0.03) | (0.06) | (0.21) | (0.34) | (0.38) | (0.08) ()
charges which is refundable to
the policyholders/ beneficiaries
but not refunded so far

Cheques issued but nct - - - - . . . - .
Uy by the ) G G G ) ) ) ORENG!

policyholder/beneficiaries
Remittance through NEFT/RTGS 4.14 - . - > 0.99 3.15 e -
or any other electronic mods | (4.38) () (-)| (1.08) | (3.30) (-) () ) (-}

bounced back

Figures in brackets are for the year ended March 31, 2024
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Progress of settlement of unclaimed amounts during the year ended March 31, 2025
{Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Figures in brackets are for the year ended March 31, 2024

| unclaimed cases Add: unclaimed Less: unclaimed Add: unclaimed cases
as at beginning of cases added cases settled Income as at the end of
current year during the current | during the current accrued the year
year year during the
year
Particulars Number f Amount | Number | Amount | Number | Amount | Amount Number | Amount
Claims settled but 154 4.38 - - 10 0.24 - 144 414
not paid to the {184) (7.42) (-) {-) (30) (3.04) (-) (154) (4.38)
policyholders / ;
insured
Sum due to the - - = E - E - = -
insured ! -} (-) {-) (-) ) (-) -} (-) (-)
policyholders  on
maturity or
otherwise .
Any excess 146 8.63 199 1.89 46 0.72 (0.87) | 209 8.92
collection of the (474) (6.93) (16) {0.04) (344) {2.02) {3.68) (146) (8.63)
premium/ tax or '
any other charges
which is refundable
to the policyholders
but not refunded so
far
Cheques issued - - = - 5 2 i . -
but not encashed () () ) ) )| ) e () )
by the policyholder
/ insured :
| Total 300 13.01 199 1.89 56 0.97 (0.87) 443 13.06
(658) | (14.35) {16) (0.04) (374) {5.06) (3.68) {300) (13.01)

Notes to Accounts 31 of 35




ZUNO General Insurance Limited (formerly known as Edelweiss General
Insurance Company Limited)

Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

Movement in the unclaimed amount of policy holder’s due:
{Amounts in X Lakhs)

Particulars As at March 2025 As at March 2024
Policy Income Policy Income
Dues Accrued Dues Accrued

Opening Balance 5.49 7.52 10.51 3.84

Add: Amount transferred 0 Unclaimed Fund 1.89 - 0.04 -

Add: Cheques issued out of the unclaimed amount -1 - - -

but not encashed by the policyholders

Add: Investment Income on Unclaimed Fund* - (0.87) - 3.68

Less: Amount of claims paid/excess refunded during -

the year* 0.97 5.06 -

"Less: Amount transferred to SCWF (net of claims - - S -
paid in respect of amounts transferred earlier)
Closing Balance of Unclaimed Amount Fund 6.42 6.64 5.49 7.52

*The company had excess asset over and above the unclaimed liability of which company has redeemed
¥ 25.00 lakhs including the interest income which has been transferred to the policyholder’s fund due
to which the investment income on unclaimed fund is appearing negative.

#Interest of  0.11 lakhs has been paid to policyholders alongwith claims paid/excess refunded during the
year

5.2.10. Details of earning per share for the year ended March 31, 2025:

Particulars At March At March
31, 2025 31, 2024
Net Profit After Tax far the year (T in Lakhs) (4,753.38) | (12,468.54)
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for Basic (¥ in Lakhs) 9,363.64 7,670.44
Weighted Average No. of Equity Shares for Diluted (T in 9,363.64 7,760.44
Lakhs)
Basic Earnings per Share (%) (0.51) (1.63)
Diluted Earning per Share (%} (0.51) (1.63)
Nominal Value per Share (%) 10.00 10.00

5.2.11.Deferred taxes
The Company has nct created the deferred tax asset during FY 2024-25 as in the opinion of the
management there is no virtual certainty with convincing evidence of the assets being realized in
the near future.

9.2.12.During the year the Company has accounted for the compensation cost amounting to - ¥ 22.14
lakhs (Prewous year: - ¥ 150. 55 lakhs) for ESOPs ISSU€‘C| to the eligible employees of the Company
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5.2.13. Expense of Management

IRDAI  has granted exemption to the Company vide |IRDAlI order no.
218/F&A(NL)/GEG/COM/01/2018-19 dated 21st June 2018 , for complying with provision of the
section 40B of the Insurance Act, 1938, as amended by Insurance Laws (Amendment) Act, 2015
read with IRDAI (Expenses of Management of Insurers transacting General or Health Insurance
Business) Regulation, 2016. The said exemption was valid for Financial Years 2018-19 to 2022-23
(Five financial vears) in addition to the first partial Financial Year of 2017-18 (during which the
Company commenced operations).

With respect to Expenses of Management of Insurers transacting General or Health Insurance
Business) Regulation, 2024 (‘EOM Regulation’). The Company has applied with General Insurance
Council (‘GIC) on forbearance for exceeding the Expense of Management (EOM) over the allowable
limits for FY 2024-25. As required under EOM regulation a sum of % 8,721.14 lakhs (Previous year:
¥ 12,076.80 lakhs) which is in the excess of management over the allowable limit has been
transferred from Revenue Account to Profit and Loss account (Shareholder Account).

5.2.14. Disclosure on other work given to auditors
Pursuant to clause 7.1 of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IRDAI on May 18,2016 the

services of the statutory auditors other than statutory/internal audit are disclosed below:
(Amounts in ¥ Lakhs)

Name of the Nature of Services At March | At March
_auditor 31, 2025 | 31, 2024
NGS & Co. LLP Review of quarterly financial information for 5.60 5.60

group reporting & Certification fees on
various {RDAI returns

Khandelwal Jain | Certification fees on various IRDAI returns 0.90 1.80
& Co.
Chaturvedi & Co. | Certification fees on various IRDAI returns 0.00 0.15

5.2.15. REPO / Reverse repo transactions
No Repo/ Reverse repo transactions are done as on March 31, 2025 (Previous year: ¥ NIL).

5.2.16. Forward exchange contracts
As at March 31, 2025 there are no outstanding forward exchange contracts (Previous year: % NIL).

5.2.17.The Company’s pending litigations comprise of claims against the Company. The Company has
reviewed these pending litigations and has made adequate provisions, wherever required in its
financial statements. The Company does not expect the outcome of these proceedings to have a
material impact on its financial position.

5.2.18.(a) The Company periodically reviews all its long-term contracts to assess for any material
foreseeable losses. Based on such review, the Company is not required to make any provisions as
at the Balance Sheet date as there are no outstanding long-term contract for any material
foreseeable losses, except in respect of long-term insurance contracts, the Company provides for
IBNR and IBNER.2
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Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

5.2.19.

5.2.20.

5.2.21.

5.2.22.

(b) As at March 31, 2025, the Company did not have any outstanding long-term derivative
contracts (Previous year: ¥ NIL).

For the year ended March 31, 2025, the company is not required to transfer any amount into the
Investor Education and Protection Fund (Previous year: ¥ NIL).

Code on Social Security, 2020

The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 (‘Code) which could impact
the contributions by the Company towards Provident Fund and Gratuity relating to employee
benefits during employment and post-employment and has published in the Gazette of India. The
Ministry of Labour and Employment has released draft rules (‘Rules’) for the Code on November
13, 2020. The final Rules and the Effective date of the Code is awaited. The Company will assess
the impact of the Tode once the Rules are notified and will give appropriate impact in the
financial statements in the period in which Rules become effective,

The Company confirms that no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from
borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other person(s} or entity(ies) including foreign entities (‘Intermediaries’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company confirms that, no funds have been received by the Company from any person(s) or
entity(ies), including foreign entities (‘Funding Parties’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

Impact on Long Term Policies due to change in Regulation

In accordance with the Insurance Regulatory and Development Authority of india (Actuarial,
Finance and Investment Functions of Insurers) Regulations, 2024 (‘the Regulations’) and Master
circular dated May 17, 2024, with effect from October 01, 2024, the Company has recognized
premium on applicable Long term products {excluding Motor) equally on a yearly basis over the
policy period/duration on 1/n basis where ‘n’ denotes the term of the policy pericd/duration in
years. This has resulted in a decrease in Gross Written Premium by ¥ 1,204.39 Lakhs which will be
recognised in subsequent financial years basis the tenure of the policies. However, the earned
premium continues to be recognized as in earlier years and there is no impact on net earned
premium on the operating Profit in Revenue Account and Loss in Profit and Loss Account. This has
also resulted into decrease in commission, which is estimated by the Company, by approximately
T 143 Lakhs thereby resulting into higher Operating Profit by ¥ 143 Lakhs in Revenue Account and
lesser Loss in Profit and Loss Account to that extent.
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Schedule 16 -Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2025

5.2.23.Previous year/perioc numbers have been regrouped/reclassified wherever necessary to make
them comparable with those of current year.

(% in Lakhs)

benefits*

Qther KMP's

Sr. | Regrouped from Regrouped to Period Amount | Reason

No.

1. | Schedule-12 Advance tax paid | Schedule-12 Others - March 24 203.12 | For better
and taxes deducted at source | Deposit with GST presentation
(net of provision for tax) Authority

2. | Schedule-12 Advance tax paid | Schedule-12 Goods & March 24 0.67 | For better
and taxes deducted at source | Service Tax Credit presentation
(net of provision for tax)

3. | Revenue Account - 3. Others - | Revenue Account - 3. | March 24 203.76 | As required
Investment Income ‘rom Interest, Dividend & under IRDAI
Terrorism Pool Rent - Gross regulation

| 2024

4. | Revenue Account - 7. Revenue Account - 4. | March 24 75.21 | As required
Operating expenses related to | Others - (b) (i) under IRDAI
insurance business - Employee | Towards Remuneration regulation
remuneration and welfare of MD/CEQ/WTD/ 2024

*Excess of Managerial remuneration over and above the limit as prescribed under IRDAI regulation, was earlier
netted off from Schedule 4 - Employees remuneration and welfare benefits’ is now shown under the head ‘Others
- (b} Contribution from Shareholders’ Account’

As per our attached report of even date
For and on

half of the Board
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